Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

CYNGOR
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir Fflint
Chief Officer (Governance) - . .
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) Flintshire
COUNTY COUNCII

At: Cyng David Wisinger (Cadeirydd)

: : : CSING
Cynghorwyr: Mike Allport, Bernie Attridge,

Chris Bithell, Derek Butler, lan Dunbar,
Veronica Gay, Gladys Healey, Patrick Heesom,
Kevin Hughes, Paul Johnson, Christine Jones, Maureen Potter 01352 702322
Richard Jones, Richard Lloyd, Mike Peers,
Neville Phillips and Owen Thomas

Dydd lau, 26 Tachwedd 2020

maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

Annwyl Syr / Fadam

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD ANGHYSBELL
PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO
DYDD MERCHER, 2AIL RHAGFYR, 2020 am 1.00 PM

Yn ddiffuant,

Qo]

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Sylwch: Oherwydd y cyfyngiadau presennol ar deithio a’r gofyniad am gadw pellter
corfforol, ni chynhelir y cyfarfod hwn yn y lleoliad arferol. Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod
rhithiol a bydd ‘presenoldeb’ yn gyfyngedig i Aelodau’r Pwyllgor yn unig. Bydd y
cyfarfod yn cael ei recordio.

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch ag aelod o’'r Tim Gwasanaethau
Democrataidd ar 01352 702345




Cyfarfod Anghysbell y Pwyllgor Cynllunio — Cyfranogiad y Cyhoedd

Ni all aelodau’r cyhoedd, gwrthwynebwyr na chefnogwyr y ceisiadau
gyfarch y pwyligor anghysbell. Gofynnir am eu safbwyntiau cyn y cyfarfod
a bydd eu datganiadau’n cael eu cynnwys o fewn pecyn adroddiad y Pwyllgor.

RHAGLEN

YMDDIHEURIADAU

DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD

SYLWADAU HWYR

A WO N -

COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 8)

| gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 28 Hydref 2020.
EITEMAU I'W GOHIRIO

ADRODDIADAU'R PRIF SWYDDOG (CYNLLUNIO, AMGYLCHEDD AC

ECONOMI

Mae adroddiad y Prif Swyddog (Cynllunio, Amgylchedd ac Economi) yn
amgaeedig.

ADRODDIAD Y PRIF SWYDDOG (CYNLLUNIO, AMGYLCHEDD AC ECONOMI)

AR GYFER Y PYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 2 RHAGFYR 2020

Rhif yr
eitem

Cyfeirnod y
Ffeil

DISGRIFIAD

Ceisiadau sy'n cael eu hadrodd er penderfyniad (A= adroddiad er cymeradwyaeth, R=

adroddiad er gwrthodiad)

6.1 061572 - C - Cais llawn - Datblygu 56 annedd gan gynnwys ffordd
newydd, mannau parcio, tirlunio a chysylltiadau draenio gan gynnwys
ffurfio pant yn y tir yng nghefn 66A Ffordd Yr Wyddgrug, Mynydd Isa
(Tudalennau 9 - 38)

6.2 059396 - G - Cais llawn - Adeiladu 80 annnedd, siop gyfleus a datblygiad
cysylltiol yn Coppy Farm, Ffordd Cilcain, Gwernaffield (Tudalennau 39 -
80)

Rhif yr | Cyfeirnod y DISGRIFIAD

eitem Ffeil

Materion Cyffredinol

6.3

Materion Cyffredinol - Cytundeb amrywiad A106 (Tudalennau 81 - 86)

6.4

061720 - Materion Cuffredinol - Cais llawn am estyniad Ystafell Haul a
Garej gydag Estyniad Ystafell Wely uwchlaw yn 7 Ffordd Pinewood, Drury
(Tudalennau 87 - 104)




01.

02.

03.

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE
28 OCTOBER 2020

Minutes of the remote meeting of the Planning Committee of Flintshire County
Council held on Wednesday, 28 October 2020.

PRESENT: Councillor David Wisinger (Chairman)

Councillors: Mike Allport, Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Derek Butler, lan Dunbar,
Veronica Gay, Gladys Healey, Patrick Heesom, Kevin Hughes, Paul Johnson,
Christine Jones, Richard Jones, Richard Lloyd, Mike Peers, Neville Phillips and
Owen Thomas

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors: Marion Bateman, Dave Hughes and Brian Lloyd (As
observers)

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Officer (Planning, Environment & Economy); Development Manager; Service
Manager - Strategy; Legal Services Manager, Planning Officers; Senior Engineer -
Highways Development Control; and Democratic Services Officers

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Mike Peers declared a personal and prejudicial interest on agenda item
6.5 (061154) as a family member was employed by Clwyd Alyn (the joint applicant).

LATE OBSERVATIONS

The Chairman explained that the late observations had been circulated to Members
of the Committee prior to the meeting, a copy of which was appended to the agenda
on the Flintshire County Council website:

https://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=490&MId=48
52&Ver=4&LLL=0

MINUTES

The draft minutes of the meeting on 30 September 2020 were confirmed as a correct
record, as moved by Councillor Chris Bithell and seconded by Councillor lan Dunbar.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a true and correct record and signed by the
Chairman.

Tudalen 3


https://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=490&MId=4852&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=490&MId=4852&Ver=4&LLL=0

04.

05.

06.

ITEMS TO BE DEFERRED

The Chief Officer (Planning, Environment & Economy) advised that the following item
was recommended for deferral to enable planning officers to consider a copy of the
legal opinion submitted by objectors to the application which had been recently
circulated. If the Committee agreed to the deferral, the item would be brought back
to a future meeting of the Committee.

Agenda Item 6.9 (061489) - Full application — Retrospective change of use for
operating site as B1, B2 and B8 uses for a temporary period of 18 months
comprising the recycling and storage of non-hazardous carpet waste and
retention of existing buildings for offices and manufacturing including ancillary
storage at 300 Recycling, Deva Industrial Estate, Sandycroft.

Councillor Richard Lloyd moved the deferral which was duly seconded by Councillor
Kevin Hughes. On being put to the vote, the item was deferred.

RESOLVED:

That agenda item 6.9 (061489) be deferred to a future meeting of the Committee for
the reason stated.

REPORTS OF THE CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY)

RESOLVED:

That decisions be recorded as shown on the Planning Application schedule attached
as an appendix.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press or public present.

(The meeting started at 1.00 pm and ended at 5.09 pm)
Chairman

Meetings of the Planning Committee are webcast and can be viewed by visiting the
webcast library at: http:/flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Tudalen 4


http://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

PLANNING COMMITTEE ON 28 OCTOBER 2020

ITEM NO | TOWN/ SITE/PROPOSAL THIRD PARTY / LOCAL RESOLUTION
COMMUNITY MEMBER OBSERVATIONS
COUNCIL
060220 Argoed Full Application — Residential A statement of objection from That planning permission be refused in
Community development for the erection of the Local Member, Councillor accordance with the officer’s
Council 92 dwellings including the Mared Eastwood, was recommendation for the reasons set out
provision of affordable units, appended to the report in the in the report.
areas of public open space, agenda.
landscaping and associated
works at New Brighton Road, A statement of objection from
New Brighton, Mold. the Local Residents Group was
appended to the report in the
agenda.
—
060855 Buckley Town Reserved matters - application for | Councillor Mike Peers, as Local | That planning permission be granted,
% Council the approval of reserved matters | Member, spoke on the subject to the conditions set out in the
S for residential development application. report, in line with the officer’s
ol including access, open space, recommendation.

and all associated works at
Woodside Cottages, Bank Lane,
Drury

061229

Cilcain
Community
Council

Full application - Demolition of
Conservatory to front of bungalow
and erection of Single Storey
Front Extension at Marwin,
Dolfechlas Road, Rhydymwyn

Councillor Owen Thomas, as
Local Member, spoke against
the application.

A statement of objection from
Cilcain Community Council was
appended to the report.

That planning permission be granted,
subject to the conditions set out in the
report, in line with the officer’s
recommendation.




ITEM NO | TOWN/ SITE/PROPOSAL THIRD PARTY / LOCAL RESOLUTION
COMMUNITY MEMBER OBSERVATIONS
COUNCIL
A statement of objection from a
local resident was appended to
the report in the agenda.
060372 Cilcain Full application — siting of log Councillor Owen Thomas, as That planning permission be refused,
Community cabin to provide ancillary use to Local Member, spoke against against the officer’'s recommendation,
Council the main residential dwelling and | the application. on the following grounds:
siting of a static caravan
temporary 12 month period Cilcain Community Council e inappropriate development in the
(retrospective) at Brynsholyn, objected to the application open countryside; and
El Cefn Road, Cilcain e does not represent annexed
o A statement of support from the accommodation
Qo agent for the application was
CDD appended to the report in the
o agenda
061154 Mold Town Full application — Proposed A statement of objection from That planning permission be refused in
Council residential development for 90 the Local Member, Councillor accordance with the officer’'s

No. residential units of
accommodation (of which 40%
will be affordable and supported
living), public open space,
landscaping, means of highway
and pedestrian access, local
highway and pedestrian
infrastructure improvements at
Plas Aney, Ruthin Road, Mold

Geoff Collett, was appended to
the report in the agenda.

A statement of objection from
Mold Town Council was
appended to the report.

A statement of objection from a
local resident was appended to
the report.

recommendation for the reasons set out
in the report.




ITEM NO | TOWN/ SITE/PROPOSAL THIRD PARTY / LOCAL RESOLUTION
COMMUNITY MEMBER OBSERVATIONS
COUNCIL
A statement of support from a
local resident was appended to
the report.
061248 Llanfynydd Outline Application with all A statement of support from the | That planning permission be granted,
Community matters reserved for residential agent for the application was subject to the conditions set out in the
Council development consisting of 14 No. | appended to the report. report, in line with the officer’s
units with a mixture of 2 storey recommendation.
semi-detached and 3 storey A statement from the Local
detached dwellings at former Member, Councillor Dave
Spectrum Home & Garden Hughes, was appended to the
Centre, Wrexham Road, Cefn-y- | report.
Bedd .
EI A statement of objection from a
8. local resident was appended to
g the report.
Q61230 Holywell Town Full application — residential A statement of support from the | That planning permission be granted,
Council development including 15 No. Applicant was appended to the | subject to the conditions set out in the
new housing units and the report. report, in line with the officer’s
change of use/conversion of the recommendation.
former infirmary wing into 14 No. | A statement of support from the
apartments at Lluesty Hospital, Local Member, Councillor Paul
Old Chester Road, Holywell. Johnson, was appended to the
report.
060783 Mostyn Full application — residential Councillor Patrick Heesom, as That planning permission be granted,
Community development for 20 No. dwellings | Local Member, spoke against subject to the conditions set out in the
Council and associated gardens and car | the application. report, in line with the officer’s

parking at Ffordd Pandarus,
Maes Pennant, Mostyn.

recommendation.




ITEM NO

TOWN/
COMMUNITY
COUNCIL

SITE/PROPOSAL

THIRD PARTY / LOCAL
MEMBER OBSERVATIONS

RESOLUTION

A statement of objection from
Mostyn Community Council was
appended to the report.

A statement of objection from a
local resident was appended to
the report.

A statement of support from a
local resident was appended to
the report.

1489

g Usppn L

Queensferry
Community
Council

Full Application — retrospective
change of use for operating site
as B1, B2 and B8 uses for a
temporary period of 18 months
comprising the recycling and
storage of non-hazardous carpet
waste and retention of existing
buildings for offices and
manufacturing including ancillary
storage at 300 Recycling, Units
A-D, Deva Industrial Estate,
Sandycroft, Deeside.

A statement of support from the
agent for the application was
appended to the report.

A statement of objection from
local business was appended to
the report.

That the application be deferred to a
future meeting of the Committee for the
reason stated.




Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6.1

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE: 2"d DECEMBER 2020
REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT

AND ECONOMY)

SUBJECT: FULL APPLICATION - DEVELOPMENT OF 56
DWELLINGS ON LAND TO REAR OF 66A MOLD
ROAD, INCLUDING NEW ROADWAY, PARKING
AREAS, LANDSCAPING AND DRAINAGE
CONNECTIONS INCLUDING FORMATION OF

SWALE.

APPLICATION

NUMBER: 061572

APPLICANT: CLWYD ALYN HOUSING LTD

SITE: LAND TO REAR OF 66A MOLD ROAD, MYNYDD
ISA

APPLICATION

VALID DATE: 24™ JULY 2020

LOCAL MEMBERS: CLLRH MCGUILL

TOWN/COMMUNITY

COUNCIL.: ARGOED COMMUNITY COUNCIL
REASON FOR SCALE OF DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE:

SITE VISIT: YES

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01  Full application for residential development of 56 dwellings on land
to rear of 66A Mold Road, Mynydd Isa including new roadway,
parking areas, landscaping and drainage connections including
formation of swale.

2.00 RECOMMENDATION: TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION,
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:-

2.01 The conditional planning permission be granted subject to the

Tudalen 9



3.00

3.01

applicant entering into a Section 106 Obligation to provide the
following:

e An undertaking to ensure that the affordable dwellings, at the
tenures identified by the approved documents, remain
affordable in perpetuity.

e Primary and Secondary school contributions in accordance
with SPGN 23- Developer Contributions to Education

e Public Open Space commuted sums of £733.00 per dwelling,
in lieu of on-site provision.

If the Obligation pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (as outlined above) is not completed within 3 months of the
date of the Committee resolution, the Head of Planning be given the
delegated authority to REFUSE the application.

Conditions

. Time Limit

. In accordance with Approved plans

. Materials

. Proposed and existing levels

. Landscaping implementation

. Arboricultural assessment Tree Protection Areas

. Contaminated land survey and remediation scheme
. Species/wildlife habitat conservation scheme

. Site access details

10. Site access to be kerbed

11. Internal road details

12. Creation of access

13. Parking and turning

14. Highways surface water

15. Construction traffic management plan

16. Travel plan and Transport implementation strategy
17.Submission of drainage strategy

OCoO~NOOOAPS,WN -

CONSULTATIONS

Local Member

Councillor H McGuill

Refers to committee as it is a large development and will affect a
major change on the area and the environment surrounding the site.
Concerns about the site and the tree destruction and the

traffic flow onto Mold Road.

Argoed Community Council

1. According to Flintshire’s interactive map, there are at least 7 trees
on this site which have the protection of a tree preservation order.
However, there is insufficient provision for the retention of these trees
in the plans submitted.

Tudalen 10



2. The proposed exit for this site is onto Mold Road at a place where
the sight lines for exiting traffic are extremely poor and the Council
remains concerned at the potential hazard this represents.

3. Mold Road also experiences heavy traffic, which will cause
problems especially for those wishing to exit the

site and turn right, or those travelling in the Buckley direction and
wishing to turn right into the site. The Council would like consideration
to be given to the installation of a mini roundabout or other traffic
management solution to assist with the safety aspect of entering and
exiting the site across the flow of traffic and also maintaining the flow
of traffic.

Highway Development Management
Request conditions and advisory notes

Community and Business Protection
Requests contaminated land condition

Housing Strategy

The LHMA for Flintshire identifies an annual shortfall of 238 affordable
units.

The assessment recommends a need for the following property types:
711/ 2 bedroom (45.6%)

1 3 bedroom (28.3%)

1 4+ bedroom (12%)

1 Older persons stock (14.1%)

And this should be split between the following tenures:

1 Social rented (30%),

1 Intermediate rent (30%)

1 Affordable ownership (40%)

General Needs Housing — social rent (SARTH waiting list as at 1-9-
20)

2 bed |1 bed |2 bed |2 bed |3 bed |3 bed
bungalow | flat flat house | house | adapted

bungalow
Mold 30 301 90 145 32 1
and
Mynydd
Isa

Housing Strategy Comments:
Affordable

Housing Partner: Clwyd Alyn
Preferred Mix of units:

24 x 2 bed houses

25 x 3 bed houses

Tudalen 11



2 x 2 bed bungalows

1 x 3 bed wheelchair accessible bungalow

4 x 1 bed flats

56 total

Mold and Mynydd Isa is an area of significant housing demand and the
mix of units being proposed by Clwyd Alyn is acceptable.

Housing Strategy is fully supportive of this planning application. The
dwellings will be made available for social rent and the scheme has been
approved by the Welsh Government and allocated social housing grant
funding.

Education
No response at time of writing

Aura

In accordance with Planning Guidance Note No.13 POS provision,
the Council should be seeking an off-site contribution of £1,100.00
per house/dwelling, in lieu of onsite POS.

The payment would be used to enhance Junior play provision at Wats
Dyke Play Area.

Working with Planning Policy we have considered previous pooled
contributions and we confirm that the pooled contributions thresholds
have not been exceeded with regards to Wats Dyke Play Area .

Welsh Water/Dwr Cymru

Advise that the proposed development site is crossed by 100mm
diameter public foul gravity sewer and a 150mm diameter public
surface water gravity sewer and outfall, as well as a 25mm clean
public watermain. Under the Water Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru
Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times. No
operational development will be permitted within 3 metres either side
of the centreline of the sewers.

Requests foul water drainage condition

Natural Resources Wales
Requests condition requiring a Site wide species/habitat
Conservation Plan, and advisory notes.

CPAT

Confirm that the proposed development site to

the rear of 66a Mold Road, Mynydd Isa was evaluated for archaeology
back in 2010 in relation to an earlier application (048042) which
concluded there would be no archaeological impact. Although the site
boundary has been slightly amended, the archaeological impact is still
considered to be low.

Tudalen 12



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

PUBLICITY

Press Notice, Site, Notice, Neighbour Notification

7 letters of objection received

Inadequate access to development

Loss of important trees from site

Loss of privacy/Impact of new dwellings on amenity

Noise and air pollution arising from development

Cramped layout

Land contaminated and should not be disturbed

Great Crested Newts on site

Highways impact upon Rose Lane from construction traffic
Possible providing an excess of affordable housing which
would mean houses going to non-local people

Lack of market housing not compliant with HSG9 and HSG10
and creation of socially inclusive and diverse communities.

SITE HISTORY

48042- Outline - demolition of 'Sunnyside' and 66A Mold Road and
the erection of 58no. houses including details of access,
appearance, layout and scale- Refused 10" September 2013
Allowed on appeal 16" October 2015

058932- Application for approval of Landscaping reserved matter
following outline approval 048042- Approved 6" December 2018

PLANNING POLICIES

Flintshire Unitary Development Plan

STR1 — New Development.

STR4 — Housing.

STR7 — Natural Environment.

GEN1 — General Requirements for Development.
D1 — Design Quality, Location & Layout.

D2 — Design.

D3 - Landscaping.

TWH1 — Development Affecting Trees & Woodlands.
TWH2 — Protection of Hedgerows.

WB1 — Species Protection.

HE7 —

Other Sites of Lesser Archaeological Significance.

AC13 — Access & Traffic Impact.

HSG1 (32) — New Housing Development Proposals.

HSG8 — Density of Development.

HSG9 — Housing Mix & Type.

HSG10 — Affordable Housing Within Settlement Boundaries.

Tudalen 13



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

SR5 — Outdoor Playing Space & New Residential Dwellings.
EWP12 — Pollution.
EWP14 — Derelict & Contaminated Land.

PLANNING APPRAISAL

Proposal

This application is for the erection of 56 no. affordable dwelling units
including a new roadway, parking areas, landscaping and drainage
connections including formation of a swale.

Site

The site is located to the south of the properties 58 — 66 Mold Road,
west of Rose Lane and east of Clwyd Avenue, all of which are located
on the southern side of Mold Road, Mynydd Isa. The site is allocated
for housing development in the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan
HSG1 (32) — Rose Lane, Mynydd Isa.

The site is unused and overgrown and is measured at 2.06 hectare in
area, it comprises unmanaged grassland fields, mature hedgerows,
marshy grassland and swamp habitat with a pond located just off site
at the southeast corner. There is a derelict dwelling located on the
eastern portion of the site.

The topography of the site slopes approximately 6.0m from west to
southeast with a pronounced slope generally running down the centre
of the site. The base of the slope on the eastern part of the site marks
the western edge of a natural deep infilled alluvial valley.

The site is bounded on the west by properties on Rose Lane, a
mixture of two storey dwellings and bungalows, and bungalows on
Overdale Road and Clwyd Avenue to the east of the site. The site
frontage is onto Mold Road A549, which has a mix of semi and
detached two storey dwellings.

Principle

The Site is located within the settlement boundary for Mynydd Isa in
the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan which is a Category ‘B’
settlement with an array of facilities and services and the sites
allocation for residential development reflects both the strategy of the
Flintshire Unitary Development Plan and the principles of sustainable
development embodied in Planning Policy Wales. In this context
therefore, there is a clear policy framework supporting the principle of
residential development on the site.

Planning history

Tudalen 14



7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

A previous application, reference number 048042, for 58 houses and
applied for in outline although considering all matters other than
Landscaping, was refused by the Planning Committee on the 10t
September 2013 on the following grounds:

1. The Council considers the proposals as submitted do not provide
for 30% affordable housing within the scheme, thereby restricting the
community's accessibility to the facilities and thereby contrary to
Policy HSG10 of the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan and Local
Planning Guidance Note 9 'Affordable Housing'.

2. The proposed development would be likely to result in an increase
in the volume of traffic which is likely to include the conflict in traffic
movements close to existing junctions to the detriment of highway
safety and contrary to Policy GEN1 and Policy AC13 of the

Flintshire Unitary Development Plan.

3. The Council considers the proposals as submitted do not make
adequate provision for public open space, thereby restricting the
community's accessibility to the facilities and thereby contrary to
Policy GEN1 and Policy SR5 of the Flintshire Unitary Development
Plan and Local Planning Guidance Note 13 'Open Space
Requirements'.

4. The Council considers that the shortfall in the maximum parking
standards of the development has not been justified resulting in
inadequate parking provision and thereby detrimental to highway
safety, contrary to Policy AC13 of the Flintshire Unitary Development
Plan.

The scheme was subsequently allowed on appeal on the 16"
October 2015. A reserved matters application for the landscaping of
the site was approved on the 6" December 2018. As such the site
has extant permission for 58 dwellings and previously raised issues
have been considered acceptable by a Planning Inspector. This is a
material consideration when considering the current proposal, as
whilst the proposal currently before you differs from the approved
scheme in many ways certain things, such as matters of principle and
the access (reason for refusal number 2), are the same as that
previously approved.

Affordable dwellings and Housing Mix

The current proposal has been submitted by Clwyd Alyn Housing
Association and is an 100% affordable scheme. The scheme
provides:

21no 2bed inverted dwellings 2 storey high,
3no 2 bed terrace dwellings 2 storeys high,
25n0 3 bed dwellings 2 storeys high,

Tudalen 15



7.14

7.15

7.16

717

2no 2 bed bungalows
1no 3 bed wheelchair accessible bungalow
4no 1 bed walk up flats 2 storeys high

A third party has raised concerns over the number of affordable
dwellings proposed and whether this exceeds local need. If this were
to be the case then it may be that tenants would be brought in from
outside areas to take up vacant units. As has been demonstrated by
the SARTH figures provided by Housing Strategy for the Mold and
Mynydd Isa area there is a high demand for the types of dwellings
proposed. This demand comes from the local area and the
development will help to address this need significantly.

In accordance with policy HSG10 of the Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan, where there is a demonstrable need for affordable
housing to meet local needs the Council will take account of this as a
material consideration when assessing the housing proposal. The
scheme has been developed to meet Clwyd Alyn Affordable housing
requirements as well as the needs of the SARTH waiting list. Housing
strategy have given the scheme their support.

Concern has been raised that an affordable scheme of the size of the
proposal does not meet the requirements of policy HSG9 in creating
a mixed and socially inclusive community, as all of the units are
affordable. It has been queried whether some of the units should be
market housing in order to create a socially mixed development. This
is, in my view, a misreading of the policy. The policy states that
‘housing developments should provide an appropriate mix of dwelling
size and type in order to create mixed and socially inclusive
communities’. The development does provide a good mix of dwelling
sizes and types, including bungalows, 1 bed flats, 2 and 3 bed
dwellings and in that way can be said to meet the requirements of the
policy. Whilst the tenure offered will be ones which meet the definition
of affordable dwellings the proposal should be viewed in the context
of the wider Mynydd Isa community. The majority of housing in the
locality is owner occupier. As has been mentioned above there is a
large demand for affordable dwellings of various types and sizes in
this location. Para 4.2.32 of PPW10 does allow for 100% affordable
housing schemes reflecting local circumstances. As such the
proposal can be seen as being of great importance to creating a
socially diverse and inclusive community in accordance with UDP
policy HSG9 as well as with National policy.

Design, Impact upon locality, and neighbouring amenity

The proposed layout features the spine road on a north-south axis
bisecting the site. Dwellings are arranged in a linear fashion from this
spine road, with a spur road on the southern corner of the site. This
layout ensures that in most cases the proposed dwellings are rear

Tudalen 16



7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

facing towards dwellings on Rose Lane, on the western half of the
site, and towards Overdale Close and Clwyd Avenue on the eastern
half of the site.

On the eastern portion of the site the area set aside for surface water
drainage measures as well as informal, landscaped, public open
space ensures that the proposed dwellings are set a significant
distance from exiting dwellings. On the western portion of the site the
developer has ensured that the interface distances in every case meet
the prescribed distances in SPGN 2 — Space around dwellings, taking
into account a 1 metre difference in land level from the proposed
dwellings to existing, namely 24 metres where the interface is rear
elevation facing rear elevation and 14 metres where the interface is
rear to flank wall.

The proposed garden area are acceptable in terms of area provided.
In general they meet the suggested depth of 11 metres. Where this is
not provided this is mitigated by adjacent neighbours having large rear
gardens. In all cases the provided garden depths are acceptable.

In the vicinity of the site there are a mixture of housetypes, of various
ages and designs. The dwellings on Rose lane are a mixture of early
20t century brick built semi detached properties, which is a style
particularly characteristic of Buckley. There are also a number of
detached mid 20t century bungalows, and later developments to the
east of the site. External materials are generally brick with render. The
designs chosen for the development are appropriate and ensure that
the development compliments the character of the locality whilst
ensuring that the development itself is attractive and appropriate.

| do not consider that the proposal would have an unacceptably
detrimental impact upon neighbouring amenity, or otherwise cause
overshadowing or impinge on privacy. The proposal accords with
applicable Council guidance regarding interface distances, and as
such it accords with the relevant development plan policies
concerning issues of neighbouring amenity. The designs are
appropriate for the locality and will create an attractive development.

Landscaping and Trees

The landscape proposal comprises a comprehensive mix of soft and
hard landscaped areas throughout the site.

The hedgerow boundary to the site will be retained and enhance with
new hedgerow planting where required. New secure by Design
approved fencing along the West of the site in keeping with the
surrounding housing is also proposed. This fencing will provide a
consistent visual buffer between the site and existing housing in place
of what is at present an ad hoc collection of different types of boundary
treatment.

Tudalen 17



7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

A new landscaped public open space will be provided along the East
of the site with new trees and hedgerows. A pedestrian access will be
located at the entrance to the site with hard and soft landscaping and
a proposed pedestrian kissing gate and locked vehicular maintenance
access gate.

The planting has been chosen to provide year-round interest and
colour and will include evergreen and ornamental species.
Landscaped buffer zones are provided to neighbouring buildings
across the site in key areas

Existing trees have been retained on site, where this has been
possible. The submitted Arboricultural assessment demonstrates that
the majority of trees to be removed are of low quality. The scheme
will, however, require the loss of 3 high quality specimens, all Oak
trees, and 5 specimens of moderate quality, consisting of one Oak,
three Ash and one sycamore. Policy TWH1 of the Unitary
Development Plan states that ‘where the removal of trees is
considered acceptable, suitable replacements that are appropriate to
the character of the area shall be established elsewhere within the
site.” Within the landscaping scheme there is an extensive amount of
new trees being planted within the open space area. The trees to be
planted are native species including Alder, Whitebeam, Poplar, Birch,
Walnut, Bird Chery and Rowan. This planting will establish itself and
introduces an attractive facet of the development as well as aiding
with the biodiversity of the site itself. | consider that the proposal is in
accordance with policy TWH1.

Protection measures to be followed to ensure the safety of existing
trees have been set out within the arboricultural assessment. A
condition will ensure that these measures are followed throughout the
phase of construction.

It is acknowledged that the loss of existing trees from the site, in
particular good quality specimens, will have a significant effect upon
the local landscape and this is a material consideration with regard to
this proposed development. | consider that this has been accurately
assessed and that, in the planning balance, the loss of trees is
acceptable with regard to relevant policies, being both unavoidable
due to the necessary site layout and with due regard to other
development constraints on site, and proportionately mitigated
against by the landscaping of the scheme.

Highways

The access for the development is created by the demolition of 66A
Mold Road and the creation of a new vehicular access. This new
access point is identical to that proposed on the previously approved

Tudalen 18



7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

scheme. Highways Development Control are satisfied that this is an
acceptable solution to ensure vehicular access to the site.

A construction traffic management plan is suggested as a condition,
to ensure that the development phase causes as little disruption to
the adjoining highways network as possible.

Pre commencement conditions suggested by the Highways Authority
will ensure that the access meets highways requirements.

As the access arrangements are identical to those approved on the
previous planning approval on site, and with the support of the
Highways Authority, | consider that the access arrangements are
acceptable.

Drainage

DCWW advise that the proposed development site is crossed by a
100mm diameter public foul gravity sewer and a 150mm diameter
public surface water sewer and outfall. Having reviewed the sewer
record plan supplied, the only foul sewer that DCWW can be referring
to is the one located in the alley off Rose Lane between Plots 1a and
1. There are no works planned in this area and access is to be
maintained for the neighbouring properties on Mold Road. Also as it
is the intention to demolish Plot 66A Mold Road as advanced works
to provide access to the site it is assumed that this route will not be
used for access to the development area during construction and
therefore there is no risk to this sewer. There are no other foul sewers
identified as crossing the site on the record.

Regarding the surface water sewer and outfall, there is a pipe entering
the site from Clwyd Avenue and initial investigations have identified a
connection very close to the site boundary. The sewer connects to a
culverted watercourse and consultation with various parties during the
design development has identified that none of the statutory bodies
assume ownership responsibility for the watercourse. Therefore as
riparian owner Clwyd Alyn will assume responsibility. The existing
culverted watercourse is in a poor state of repair and as part of the
proposed works the existing pipe will be repaired/replaced.

DCWW also advise that a 25mm clean public watermain crosses the
proposed development however having reviewed the supplied asset
record the main cannot be identified. The developer have been made
aware of these concerns and have been careful to avoid interfering
with any of DCWWs assets. Any work that will connect to public sewer
or water systems will be subject to separate regulatory measures.

Having now reviewed the proposed foul drainage layout through the
planning process DCWW are advising that the proposal to
communicate the foul flows with the combined storm overflow is not
permissible. They are now proposing that the communication with the

Tudalen 19



7.37

7.38

7.39

7.40

public sewer from the development should be at or downstream of
manhole reference SJ25638801 which is located approximately 200m
from the site. There are two combined sewers in Mold Road adjacent
to the site entrance, a higher level carrier sewer and the lower level
combined storm overflow. The initial proposals were to construct a
pumped foul drainage system to communicate with the higher level
sewer which would be adopted by DCWW. This was agreed following
a modelling exercise carried out in 2015 to assess the impact
discharge from the new development would have on the sewer.
However, following further design, a feasible option was developed
which could provide a gravity network which could connect onto the
overflow sewer. The developer discussed this with DCWW and it was
developed to avoid the need for an adoptable pumping station. Welsh
Water's concern is that the velocity of the flow entering the larger
225mm diameter sewer may be reduced which could potentially result
in sedimentary deposits forming in the pipe. The applicant has
revisited the model and added the downstream length of 225mm
diameter overflow sewer into the model up to the next chamber in
Mold Road. The model details attached show that the gradient of the
existing combined overflow sewer is 1 in 87.2 with a velocity of
1.23m/s. The minimum required velocity is 0.75m/s and therefore self-
cleansing velocities can be maintained. The applicant will re-consult
with DCWW to share their design review and seek their approval for
the connection onto the overflow sewer. This regulatory system lies
outside of the planning regime. | am satisfied that the drainage
solution on site is acceptable.

Planning Obligations

The infrastructure and monetary contributions that can be required
from a planning application through a S.106 agreement have to be
assessed under Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure levy
(CIL) Regulations 2010 and Welsh Office Circular 13/97 ‘Planning
Obligations’.

It is unlawful for a planning obligation to be taken into account when
determining a planning application for a development, or any part of
a development, if the obligation does not meet all of the following
regulation 122 tests;

1. be necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;

2. be directly related to the development; and

3. be fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

Tudalen 20



7.41

7.42

7.43

7.44

7.45

7.46

7.47

As the development offers 100% Affordable housing, it would be
appropriate to require an agreement to be entered into in order to
retain the units as affordable dwellings in perpetuity.

The Legal agreement will need to address developer contributions to
education and public open space.

Education contributions

In accordance with the advice contained within SPGN23- Developer
Contributions to Education, and with regard to the limitations of
Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations, discussed above, the Local
Education Authority advises whether or not contributions should be
sought. The response of Education has not provided in time for the
publication of this report. This information will be reported as a Late
Observation.

Public Open Space

The development has a good amount of informal open space as part
of the proposal, situated on the eastern portion of the site. It does not,
however, provide an area of equipped play space. It should be noted
that the site is in fairly close proximity to a number of play areas.

Leisure have confirmed that in accordance with Planning Guidance
Note No.13 POS provision, the Council should be seeking an off-site
contribution in lieu of onsite POS. In accordance with this guidance
this would be £733.00 per affordable dwelling.

The payment would be used to enhance Junior play provision at Wats
Dyke Play Area which they have confirmed have not been exceeded
the pooled contributions thresholds. | am therefore satisfied that the
request would be in accordance with Regulation 123 of the CIL
regulations

Other matters

Clwyd Powys Archaeological Trust have confirmed that the
development has little to no archaeological impact. This confirms the
findings from the earlier planning application.

Checks carried out by the developer against the Definitive flood maps
held by Natural Resources Wales indicate that the site is outside of
the (Zone c) flood plain and that there is very low risk from flooding
(less than 1 in 1000 each year) chance of occurring each year from
rivers or from the sea.

The majority of the site is situated in Zone A, although there is a lower
central areas of the site situated in Zone B. According to TAN15 Zone
A is considered to be at little or no risk of fluvial or tidal / coastal
flooding and there is no need to consider flood risk further. Zone B

Tudalen 21



7.48

8.00

8.01

indicates areas known to have been flooded in the past evidenced by
sedimentary deposits. As a precautionary approach site levels in or
close to this area have been checked against the extreme flood levels
as part of the drainage strategy. Natural Resources Wales have
raised no objection to the scheme or requested any conditions with
regard to Flood Risk.

At the time of the original planning appeal on site, in 2015, the site
ecology was appraised and considered acceptable, with the
development having a low impact upon ecological assets. Natural
resources Wales have been consulted on the current proposal and
subject to the surveys of 2015, updated with further surveys from
2020, they have raised no objection to the proposal from an ecological
point of view. They have requested a condition to provide a site wide
Species/wildlife habitat conservation and management scheme as a
pre commencement condition of any approval. | consider that the
proposed condition is acceptable and have included this in my
recommendation. Given the relatively low ecological impact of the
proposal, and with the previous appeal decision in mind, | do not
propose to request financial contributions through the legal
agreement.

CONCLUSION

The development is acceptable in principle, being a housing allocation
within the Flintshire Unitary Development plan. The scheme
represents a residential development that meets an identified housing
need and has been designed to mitigate any potential adverse
impacts upon existing neighbouring residents. Many of the issues
raised as objections have previously been considered by the Planning
Inspector when they assessed the previous scheme, and found to be
acceptable. Subject to the Planning obligations and conditions
specified in paragraph 2.01 | recommend that the proposal is
approved.

Other Considerations

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 17 of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and considered that there would be no
significant or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a
result of the recommended decision.

The Council has acted in accordance with the Human Rights Act
1998 including Article 8 of the Convention and in a manner which is
necessary in a democratic society in furtherance of the legitimate
aims of the Act and the Convention.

Tudalen 22



The Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty
under the Equality Act 2010.

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 3 of the
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and considered
that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the
achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the recommended
decision.

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy

Responses to Consultation

Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: James Beattie
Telephone: 01352 703262
Email: james.beattie@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 23


mailto:james.beattie@flintshire.gov.uk

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Briarcroft \

Schiehallion \\\\\\\

A

Westwinds \\
= / \

Quivira - \
/ \
/ \

\

/

ARGOED

[~

2 s y Filint
‘ Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Planning, Environment & Economy,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow

_..Scale 1:50,000 =

Stati Office. © C Ci ight. Unauthorised
Leg en d reprlc?;\fgon i:-ﬁ?ingesr(oi‘:/o%n?gggrigh! gﬁ(Lil mZ;/se
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
T Flintshire County Council, 2020.
LR, Planning Application Site
|Map Scale 1:1250 |
Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan |05 Map ref SJ 2663 |

d%ﬁ@ﬁez\%oundary

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's

|PIanningAppIication 61572 |




9¢ usjepnlL

. _ -
el A s
U g’ - +
L Red line Indicates
boundary o site -
Existing buidings =" Y |
New 1m acoustic ence \
o ffont of propegty only New 1m acousic fence -
iy
1o front of property only 3 Satmo
A-B New2m figh
A8 New2m high ‘acoustic fence
acoustic fonce -
|
s

B.-C New retaining il

e

Tetained and enhanced.
New hedgrow planting wh

G- H Existing hedgerow to be
.

et required

STFM “'\ﬁ
A e - 2
P =
— k
Line of surface water
\ drain from adjacent site N
I\ (ocationto be confimec)
el i
2 A
B -
[e) $."
0“1\ - . V E- G New hedgerow planting
- Hathing indicates
'Pz area of existing fll

s m -
Proposed lcation of bat oost
withn wlow foncing enciosure

e \

; Approximate locaton
pi of existing pond
- - Existng pedgerow (0 be
fetained and ennanced: 5
oot Sate0om - N
3 E Al
i '
AR
3 .

D~ E New hedgerow planting

Boundary Treatement_Legend

am-amas  Existing hedgerow

wss  Newhedgerow planting

Bat Roost

Specification:
‘The following information is guidiine onl

All materials used within the roost are criical, Non-woven
underay or breathable membranes must be avoided.

1F traditional hessian-backed bitumen felt s currently the
only roof ining considered to be safe for use with bats.
Foost access points must be inked to vagetation and
commuting routes/points. Access points required to be
lotter box or dormer access

For more infomation refor to ww acerecology.co.uk

Acoustic fencing

‘Specification:

Manufacturer: Jackson Fencing
Product: Jakoustic reflective barier

o provide up to 28 dB i noise reduction
Category B3 rating

34mm thick V" boards

2m high (1m high o front of property) as
indicated on boundary treatment plan

om 2m 4m 6m 8m |Al]
e e e )

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

Notes

Figured dimensions are to be used i all case.
Dimensions should not be scaled from drawing

of the work.

Any discrepancies in dimensions should be clarified with the Architect prior

to commencement of the work.

No deviation from this drawing will be permitied without the prior written

consent of the Architect,

‘This rawing is o be read in conjunction with allthe relevant Mechanical

and Electrical drawings.

“This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Structural
tructural calcul

“This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Fire Safety
Strategy drawings

“This drawing is copyright and to be retured to the architect on completion
of the contract.

U6 [Increased number of parking spaces o 5o and | AB ora
artments. 500mm wee senvice
nm CFa
75 [ 5020
7o W[ 070220
7 W[ 040220
75 LI AP
Fev. | Rovison descripton Drawn_| Grecked | _Date

Lovelock Mitchell Architects
3 Stanley Street, Chester, CH1 2LS
Tol +44 (0) 1244 404321

e-mail: admin@lovelockmitchell.com
web:  wwwlovelockmitchell. com

Project
Clwyd Alyn Housing
Mold Road, Mynydd Isa

Tile
Site Boundary treatment as proposed

LA Project| Drawing number Rov.

1567 | PMI-LMA-XX-XX-DR-A-1006| P06

TS




om 2m 4m 6m 8m |Al]
51 I s N s
VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ At

Notes

Figured dimensions are to be used in all case.
Dimensions should not be scaled from drawing

of the work.

with the Architect pri

y

to commencement of the work.

No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior witien

consent of the Architect.

‘This rawing is o be read in conjunction with allthe relevant Mechanical

and Electrical drawings.

‘This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Structural
tructural

“This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Fire Safety

Strategy drawings

Plot 01 Plot 02 Plot 03 Plot 04 Plotos Plot 06. Plot 07 Plot 08 Plot 09 Plot 10

“This drawing is copyright and

n Site Section_01
Scale: 1:200

a Site Plan as Proposed

Scale: 1:2000

Plot 11 Plot 12

Plot 13 Plot 14 Plot 15

Plot1s  Plot17 Plot 18 Plot 19 Plot 20 Plot 21 Plot 22

Boundary e

. Site Section_02
Scale: 1:200

Lc usfepny

Plot 49
Plot 53/54 Plot 55156

St ——— ———— — £ Plot 51 Plot 52
7 Eloctrical
1 LT B - - ~ - Sub Station

L) 1
e e

Boundary line:

. Site Section_03
Scale: 1:200

i [ A | Wi [ie0ez0
v, | Revisondeserpton [ Drawn [ Greckea | _oae

Plot a7 Plot 38 Plot 39 Plot 40 Plot 41 Plot 42
Lovelock Mitchell Architects

3 Stanley Street, Chester, CH1 2LS
Tol +44 (0) 1244 404321

e-mail: admin@lovelockmitchell.com
web:

Plots 11-15. ‘wwwlovelockmitchell com

Project
Clwyd Alyn Housing
Mold Road, Mynydd Isa

Boundary line

Y WA

Tile
Site Sections as Proposed 01

Site Section_04
Scale: 1:200

LA Project]

1567

Rev.

PO1

Drawing number

PMI-LMA-XX-XX-DR-A-1004|

Stoviode,



n Site Section_05
Scale: 1:200

line

Bound:

a Site Section_06
Scale: 1:200

®
)
N
co

Bounda

Site Section_07
Scale: 1:200

Plots 32:24

Boundary line

n Site Section_08
Scale: 1:200

Plot 31

Plots 0507

Plot 35

Plot 36

Plots 1822

Plots 46-50

Plots 1315

Plot23

Plots 1617

Plot 24

Piot 25

Boundary line:

Plols 2628

Site Plan as Proposed
2000

Scale: 1

‘Boundary fine

om 2m 4m 6m 8m |Al]
51 I s N s
VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ At

Notes

Figured dimensions are to be used in all case.
Dimensions should not be scaled from drawing

of the work.

with

y

to commencement of the work.

No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior witien

consent of the Architect.

‘This rawing is o be read in conjunction with allthe relevant Mechanical

and Electrical drawings.

‘This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Structural
tructural

“This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Fire Safety

Strategy drawings

“This drawing is copyright and
ct

T 20

P01 AB__| WM [ 1302
| Revion dsrton [ orawn [ creckes |_ome

Lovelock Mitchell Architects
3 Stanley Street, Chester, CH1 2LS
Tol +44 (0) 1244 404321

e-mail: admin@lovelockmitchell.com
web:  wwwlovelockmitchell. com

Project
Clwyd Alyn Housing
Mold Road, Mynydd Isa

Tile
Site Sections as Proposed_02

Rev.

PO1

LA Project]

1567

Drawing number

PMI-LMA-XX-XX-DR-A-1005|

Stoviode,



Extornal door 0 rear
elevation providing and achiovo 508 batior than |
access o rear garden 0625 Buiding Regulations

- Y

Wall construction to achieve _|
K

Unvalue of 0.18 Wit

S ‘

8083

Party wall construction to
achieve Unvalue of 0.0 Wim
and achieve 508 better than
Building Regulations

6¢ usjfepnL

iate effect te roof

Dark grey gutters
and downpipe

5100

&Aoot Eaves
Facing brickwork to
local authority approval pitched timber

entrance canopy

Stone cill

00 brick soldier course

& _FirstFloor lintel

Double glazed

Electrical meter

0
~_Ground Fioor

Slate effect tl roof

Dark grey

and downpipe

5100
¢_Root Eaves

white
render fin
Stone cill

270
¥_FirstFloor

Double glazed
indowis

Electrical meter

Facing brick plnth

3
~¥_Ground Fioor

ental brick course:

Front Elevation_Brick
Scale: 1:100

qutters.

sh N pitched timber

entrance canopy

dental brick course

Front Elevation_Render
Scale: 1:100

UPVC rainwater goods
and downpipes

5100
&Aoot Eaves

Facing brickwnork o
local authority approval

2700 brick soldier course.
&_First Floor. intel
Double glazed
windows
Stone cill
Electric meter

0
~_Ground Fioor
dental brick course

Side Elevation_Brick
Scale: 1:100

UPVC rainwater goods
and downpipes

5100
&Aoot Eaves

Off-white
rendor fnish

2700
_Furst Floor

brick soldier course
intel

Double glazed
windows
Stone cill

Electric meter

0
~_Ground Fioor

Side Elevation_Render
Scale: 1:100

dental brick course

— —
B |
. Wal construction o achieve __|
[ Unvalve of 018 WimiK [
bedroom
131
==t ==t
131 me [ [
L @ g 2l
H T3 | —
500 x 600mm accoss
storage haich - exact ocation ——=g =
07 m? 1o be confirmed on site : :
£ hallway [ o
8 76me - —
0.7 m - rad
[— w
— 3D View_Front Elevation
- Scale:
storage | | airing f
- 08m* 08m* @ ’
- = y
e = % T P
Windous 0 atiove a ! 1 mediine cabinet oF Windous 0 atieve a | |
Unvalus of 1.4 WimeK S VP wihin boring Uvalo of 14 Wimek ,
[
Entrance canopy (above) Electrical meters Wall to we to provide min. 40 RwdB
nom. 600mm deep on external wall stairs. c pol
ome ntrance canopy (below)
Lovel access to front door, nom. 600mm deep.
leval landing 1200x1200mm §
1o be provided at the
entrance to all dwslings
Walt s o provid min. 40 g b4 —
I [ g
L I N " |
Entrance canopy (above) 7/ | Entrance canopy (oelow) |
m deep deep
o Ground Floor Plan as Proposed 3 . First Floor Plan as Proposed s
Scale: 1:50 I Scale: 1:50 I

|

State efect e roof
Dark grey gutters
and downpipe

5100

¥ ool Eav
Double glazed
windows.

‘Stone cill

Facing brickwork (o

0 local authority approval

¥ fstoor
Facing brick solder
course fintel
Double rear door to
Kitchen / diner

°
~_Ground Floor
B

Rear Elevation_Brick
Scale: 1:100

Stone il

State effect te roof
Dark grey gutters
and downpipe

5100

¥_Root Eaves
Double glazed
windows.
Off-white

00 render finish
¥_FirstFloor

Facing brick soldier
course lintol
Double rear door to
Kitchen / diner
o
¥_Ground Fioor

Rear Elevation_Render
Scale: 1:100

Oom 2m 4m 6m

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

Notes

Figured dimensions are to be used i all case.
Dimensions should not be scaled from drawing

3
‘Any discrepancies in dimensions should be clarified
to commencement of the work

No deviation from this drawing will be permitied without the prior written

consent of the Architect,
“This drawing is o be read in conjunction with all the
and Electrical drawings.

“This drawing is o be read

conjunction wilh the rel
I calcul

with the Architect prior

relevant Mechanical

levant Structural

“This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Fire Safety

Strategy drawings

“This drawing is copyright and to be retured to the architect on completion
tract.

of the contract

1B2P - Gross Internal Area

Name Area
1B2P WalkcUp flat 01 | 5156 me
1B2P WalkUp flat02 | 50.76 me
‘Grand total 1132

=

1B2P Walk-up flat Room Schedule.
Pt
o
aivoom Tz
edroom Tione
aivay T
ichan T
ounge Tainer Teg
orage o8t
057
Ground Foor
T
i poT
Eedioom s
g %
ey o
ichen 2w
foungo Tder Tissne
Siais oo
Sorage Gesn
facpd Gasne
aane
Grandtotal Tos83me
[ planning A8 T ~a Te0it18
[Fev. [ ovsinsesrpton [ orawn [ creckes |_ome

Lovelock Mitchell Architects
3 Stanley Stroet, Chester, CH1 2LS

e-mail: adm
web:

Tel +44 (0) 1244 404321

in@lovelockmitchell com

‘wwwlovelockmitchell.com

Project
Pennaf Housing
Mold Road, Mynydd Isa

Tile
1B2P Apartments - GA Floor

Plans,

Elevations and 3D View as Proposed

LA Project| Drawing number

1567 | PMI-LMA-XX-XX-DR-A-2000 | P1

i B



— A

Buiding Regulations

bedroom 1
13.0m —

I between to bedroom acce:

Wallto we to provide

LA min. 40 AwdB

.
» o iz
g =

s

14

E

Wall construction to achieve
U-value of 018 W/mK

’
(3) G
.
|
st

N, | [ B S

hallway
2m

——trg

81me

I T ;

‘ 00 !
Windows o activea Eectca metrs |
U-value of 1.4 Wim?K on external wall !

Entrance canopy (above)

o

Level access to front door,
level landing 1200x1200mm __/|
1o be provided at the

entrance to all dwelings

Ground Floor Plan as Proposed
Scale: 1:50

—
-
o
D
@
5
w
o

Slate effect fie roof
Dark grey gutters.
downpipe

Pitched timber
enirance canopy
Brick soldier
course el
20 Facing brickwork to
local authority approval

Double glazed
windows
Electrical meter

dental brick course
Stone cill

~_Ground Fioor

Front Elevatlon Brick
Scale: 1:10(

State effect te roof
Dark grey gutters Pitched timber
ind downpipe entrance canopy
Brick soldier
course lintel

2000
Lov

Off-white
render finish

dental brick course:

Facing brick plinth
~¥_Ground Floor aeng brekp

From Elevahon Render
Scale: 1:1

Slate effect tl roof
Dark grey gutters

Pilched timber and downpipe
entrance canopy

2000

& _Eaves Loy
Facing brickwork o Double glazed
local authority approval windows

3
~_Ground Fioor

Side Elevallon Brick

Scale:

Slate effect te roof

Pitched timber
entrance canopy Darkgry guters
and downpip
2000
& _Eaves Level
Off-white Double glazed
render finish windows

— Facing brick plinth
3
~_Ground Figor

Side Elevatlon Render
Scale:

w_Front Elevation

Slate effect il roof

Dark grey utters.
and downpipe

Brick soldier
course lintel

Facing brickwork to
local authority approval
Double glazed

Stone cill

o
¥_Ground Fioor

Slate effect te roof

Dark grey utters
and downpipe

Brick soldier
course lintel

2000
Eaves Lovel

Double glazed render finish
windows

Stone cill

2 croundri Facing brick plinth
¥_Ground Fioor

Rear Elevation_Render
Scale: 1:100

om 2m 4m 6m 8m |Al]
e e e )

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

Notes

Figured dimensions are to be used i all case.
Dimensions should not be scaled from drawing

of the work.
‘Any discrepancies in dimensions should be clarified with the Architect prior
to commencement of the work

No deviation from this drawing will be permitied without the prior written
consent of the Architect,

‘This rawing is o be read in conjunction with allthe relevant Mechanical
and Electrical drawings.

“This drawing is o be read

conjunction with the relevant Structural
I calcul
“This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Fire Safety
Strategy drawings

Thscraving s copyight and o beretuied 0 e rciect o competion
of the contra

385 Bungalow - Gross Internal Area

Name Area
Gross nternal area 1831 me
Grand tofal 1351 me

283 Bungalow Room Schedule
0 gond foor

g T
batroom [
pedioom T TG00
hedoom e
ods
ey i
Fichon a5
fourgo Tidne
sorage GEm
oo
Gand ol sasome

o T T EAIED

[Fev. [ ovsinsesrpton T o] b

Lovelock Hitchel Architcts

3 Stanley Stmet Chester, CH1 2LS

Tel +44 (0) 1244 404321

oma:iminglovsocichalcm

e ovsockmichelcom

et

Pennaf Housing
Mold Road, Mynydd Isa

Tile
2B3P Bungalow - Floor Plans, Elevations
and 3D Views as Proposed

LA Project| Drawing number Rov.

1567 | PMI-LMA-XX-XX-DR-A-2001 | P1

i B



om 2m 4m 6m 8m |Al]
e e e )

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

&
Unvalue of 1.4 WimK Extornaldoor {0 rear Party wall consiruction to
clevaion providing achieve U-value of 0.0 Wimtk | Figured dimensions are to be used in al case.
{yal conststion o achiove 4 acoess to rear garden Y and achieve 508 beter than i Dimensions should not be scaled from drawing
Fval 7100 : Walconsiucton o aciove Buiding Regulations
Unvalue of 0 i
‘Any discrepancies in dimensions should be clrified wih the Architect prior
o commencement of he work
o — w No deviatio from this drawing will be permilted without the prior writen
- ) I N consentof the Avchiect
| Ly i “This drawing is o be read in conjunction with all the relevant Mechanical
1 and Electrical drawings.
Tad “This drawing i to be read i conjunction with the relevant Structural
Snictural calu
00 Witk

™ and achiove 508 better than
Building Regulations

Strategy drawings

Thscraving s copyight and o beretuied 0 e rciect o competion
of the contra

e g 2B4P - Gross Internal Area
= Bbdroom 2 182mt -
182mt @ 33m Tovel [
eveT o7 [ a2e2m
. level 00 [azezn
. 3D View_Front Elevation Grand total 85.64 7
Y. g @ " o Scale
1]
Hallway
106 mt ol
Hallway
. \ 10.4m
3ame \
Airing )
08m )
/ T Grana o s257me
| Extomalstops o fon st or el ki ! ! :
. e stope o Svp vithin boxing ! 1\ et mteron i
I e i s oposed forlocaion wingows to achieve a extomal wa .
Uvaloe of 1.4 Wik Enrance canopy (above) |
| nom. 600mm doep i
Wall to e to provide Lockable |
min. 40 AwdB Level access o frontdoor,
3 level landing 1200x1200mm
1o be provided at the
@ entrance o all dwelings.
n Ground Floor Plan as Proposed a First Floor Plan as Proposed
Scale: 1150 Scale: 1:50
Q_ 3D View_Rear Elevation
Scale:
ch affect ile roof
, State efect e roof Statooffec e roof
s fr Piched timber Pichetmber
entrance canopy Dark grey 9“"9'5 entrance canopy Dark grey gutters.
ok soldier and downpip o
course fntel o
Facing brickwork o oot Eaves
ocal authority approval Brick soldior
Facing brickwork o course fntel
[ Electical meter local authorty approval Double glazed
dental brick course: windous.
Stone il dental brick course Stone il Facing brickwork o
200 20 Extemal seps from front st 200 local authority approval
& _Fustoor &_Fist Foor " floor lavel to rear ground lovel st poor
See Site Plan as proposed for .
locatio —— Extomal steps from font frst
Double rear door o = floorlevel o ear ground evel
Doutee " See Site Plan as proposed for
ocation
o o
~_Ground Foor ~_Ground Fioor ~_Ground Ficor
Front Elevation_Brick Side Elevation_Brick Rear Elevation_Brick
Scale: 1:100 Scale: 1:100 Scale: 1:100
i
Siate effect e roof
Dark grey gutters. State efect e roof Stateoffect e roof
and downpipe koot Pitched timber
ark ey qutters entrance canopy Dark grey gutt
Brick soldier groy gutters
course lnte! and downpipe and downpipe
5100 5100 5100 [ oy T IR
¥ nooteaes | Ofthite ¥ RosiEamves = footemves Brick solder [Fev [revsonsescrpton [ D \ o] oo
e render finish course lintel
Double glazed Electrical meter Off-white render finish . Lovelock Mitchell Architects.
dental brick course. — Dnub\e g\a ed 3 Stanley Stmet Chester, CH1 2L
Stone cil dentalbrick course “ Stone il Olthite Tel +44(0) 1244 404321
2700 Facing brick plinth 2700 Extemal steps from front first 2700 I render finish
& st loor &_Fist Foor fioor levelto rear ground level & st Foor oma oot o
ite Plan as proposed for — ‘www lovelockmitchell.com
Tocali e Exteralsteps from front frst
4] Double rear door to floor level to rear ground level
| ounge. = See Site Plan as proposed for
== location Project
. . Facing brick plinth —{ = Pennaf Housing
~_Ground Floor ~_Ground Floor ¥_Ground Fioor L Mold Road, Mynydd Isa

Front Elevatlon Render Side Elevation_Render
Scale: 1:1 Scale: 1:100

Rear Elevatlon Render Tile
Scale: 1: 2B4P House (Inverted) - Floor Plans,
Elevations and 3D Views as Proposed

LA Project| Drawing number Rov.

1567 | PMI-LMA-XX-XX-DR-A-2005 | P1

i B




¢t uslepny

Walto we to provide

Extemal door 1o rear|
elevation providing :
access 1o rear gardel

min. 40 RwdB

(P

Wallows o provide

g

min. 40 Rwo

Potential provision of through _| |+

floor lf 1000 x 15001

Wall construction to achieve __|
WimK.

Uvalue of 0.18

Siate effect tl roof

Dargre quters
‘and downy
Brick soldier
se lintel
5100
W_Roof Eaves

Double glazed

Stone cill

2700
& _FirstFioor

o
_Ground Fioor

Slate effect te roof

Party wall construction to

achieve Urvalue

0 Wi

2 achiove 50 beter than
Building Regulations

Elec. dist unit
e

il T ¥

e ' i
Windows to achiove a Entrance cancpy (sbove) ' Electical moters
opy (above) ~ ! i

on external wal

Unvalue of 1.4 Wik nom. 600m
Level access to font door. :
level landing 1200x1200mm J/ I

pr o
entrance to all dwelings

Ground Floor Plan as Proposed
Scale: 1:50 3

Siate effect il roof

Dark grey gutters
and downpipe

5100
¥ footEaves
Facing brickwork 1o
local authority approval Double glazed
windows
Stone il
Pitched timber
entrance canopy 2700
¢ eistrioor

0
~_Ground Fioor

Frunt Elevation_Brick
Scale: 1:100

Dark ey gutters State effect e roof
and downppe
Brick soldier Dark grey gutters.
course lntl and downpipe
5100 5100
"&_root Eaves & _RootEmves
Doutl glazed Oftuhite Double glazed
‘windows render finish windows:

Stone il
Stone cill Pitched timber
2700 entrance canopy 70
& Fustrioor &_Fist oor

0
~_Ground Ficor

Electrical meter

dental brick course
Facing brick plinth

o
¥_Ground Figor

e Front Elevation_Render
Scale: 1:100

Walltows o proide

min. 40 Aol

WHE whth o and

(P

SVP within boxiflg ———_|

light ove

Wallto we to provide
min. 40 RwdB
Potential provision of through

floor lft 1000 x 1500mm.

Wallconstuctian o acieve
Unvalue of 0.18 Wit

Side Elevatlon Brick
Scale:

5 5813

Party wall construction to

|
. achieve U-value of 0.0 WimeK
i and achieve 50B better than

Building Regulations

bedroom 2
158

600 x 600mm access.

1
/ to'be confirmed on site

7

Side Elevallon Render
1:

Scale:

A R
g hallway
74m? =
— = )
— || airing
I o7me il
\ a 7
28 | -
i i
I
T PN
SN
,’ I bedroom 1
138m -
|
i
I
i
I
i
rag Cr===
N
A
Windows to achieve a Entvancl canopy lh.\cw)
Unvalue of 1.4 Wik m. 600

a First Floor Plan as Proposed
Scale: 1:50

5100
¥_Root Eaves
Brick soldier course intel
Facing brickvork to
local authority approval
Pitched timber Stone cill
entrance canopy 2700
&_First Floor

Single rear door o
Kitchen/dining
dental brick course

3
¥_Ground Fioor

5100
¥_Root Eaves
Brick soldier course lntel
Off-white
render finish
Pitched timber Stone cill
entrance canopy 2700
& _First Floor

Single rear door to
Kitchen/dining

Denta brick course

Facing brick plinth .

_Ground Floor

Rear Elevanon Brick
Scale: 1:

Rear Elevatlon Render
Scale: 1

Slate effect fle roof

Dark grey gutters
and downpipe

Brick soldier
course fintel
Double glazed
windows

Facing brickwork o

local authority approval

Slate effect te roof

Dark grey gutters
and downpipe

Brick soldier
course fintel
Double glazed
windows

Oft-white
render finish

Facing brick plinth

Scale:

3D View_Rear Elevation
Scale:

om 2m 4m 6m 8m |Al]
e e e )

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

Notes

Figured dimensions are to be used i all case.
Dimensions should not be scaled from drawing

of the work.
‘Any discrepancies in dimensions should be clarified with the Architect prior
to commencement of the work

No deviation from this drawing will be permitied without the prior written
consent of the Architect,

‘This rawing is o be read in conjunction with allthe relevant Mechanical
and Electrical drawings.

“This drawing is o be read

conjunction with the relevant Structural
I calcul
“This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Fire Safety
Strategy drawings

Thscraving s copyight and o beretuied 0 e rciect o competion
of the contra

2B4P House - Gross Internal Area.

Tovel Area
Ground Foor Wi
FstFloor [“aeaime
Grand ot Be6am

2B4P House Room Schedule
Ground Fioor
[accessible we 305
017mE
[hall 1000 me
[itchon ining 1391 m
llounge 141 me
[Storage T60me
[tall cpd 048
H0s2me
First Floor
iring 8 e
athroom e
edroom 1 1378 me
edroom 2 1575 me
allvay T2
nTEme
bulkhead cpd
054
Grand total s289me

T EAIED
T o] b

o =
[Fev. [ ovsinsesrpton

Lovelock Mitchell Architects
o Staley st Grestr, CH1 215
Tel +44 (0) 1244 404321

emall aamin@lovsockmihel.com
‘wwwlovelockmitchell.com

Project
Pennaf Housing
Mold Road, Mynydd Isa

Tile
2B4P House - Floor Plans, Elevations and
3D Views as Proposed

LA Project| Drawing number Rov.

1567 | PMI-LMA-XX-XX-DR-A-2003 | P1

i B



Wall o wc to provide
min. 40 Rwd8

(oo

Wal o we to provide
min. 40 RwdB

Potential provision of through __|

floor lift 1000 x 1500mm

Wallconsiucianto schieve __
e of 0.18 Wi

_|
c
o
=
@
5

te effect e roof

ce

Dark grey gutters
and downpipe
Brick soldier
course fintel

Slate effect tle roof

Dark grey gutters
and downpipe
Brick soldier
course fintel
5100
&Aoot Eav

Double glazed

External door to rear
elevation providing
access (o rear garder

Party wall construction to
achieve U-value of 0.0 WimK
and achieve 508 beter than

Party wall construction to

achieve U-value of 0.0 WimK

and achieve 508 better than

Buiding Regulations 5 serzs Buiding Regulations
— -
Tad
| i
Il
bedroom 2.
: L—mi - Taom
| - oler
L
K tall cpd
0.5m? hallway
Tom
w
@ < 5004600m access i
.
T s tobe confirmed on site \ -
wal |1
o proveo min. 40 AudB
[ o prosinoragn |4
} fioor lift 1000 x 1500r
5] bedroom 1
D Wallconstrcton to achieve | | 12.7me
Unaloe of 0.18 WK
Wallto e to provide
min. 40 Rucd

WHE with mirror
and ight over

SVP ithin boxing

o

Windows to achiove a
Unvalue of 1.4 WimtK

n Ground Floor Plan as Proposed
1:

Scale:

2700
& _First Floor

0
~_Ground Fioor

Entrnce carop (bove)
tom. 600mm deef

Lovel accoss o front door, [
level landing 1200¢1200mm __~|
tobo provided at the

entrance 1o all dwelings

Front Elevation_Brick
Scale: 1:100

Front Elevatlon Render
Scale:

Facing brickvork to
local authoriy approval

Pitched timber
entrance canopy

Electrical meter

dental brick course

Off-white
render finish

Pilched timber
entrance canopy

Electrical meter

dental brick course
Facing brick plinth

0 Elec.dist. urit
o5m
e
_V\ A d
Electrical meters Windows o achiove a s cacpy o !
on extemal wal Unvalus of 1.4 Winek om. 600m i

e First Floor Plan as Proposed
Scale: 1:50

Siate effect tile roof
Dark grey gutters.
s100
Rool E:

Facing brickwork to
local athoriy approval

Pitched timber
entrance canopy

dental brick course

Slate effect tle roof

Dark greyguters
and downg
5100
&Aoot Eaves
Off-white
render finish
Pitched timber
200 entrance canopy
&_First Floor

Dental brick course

0 Facing brick plinth
~_Ground Fioor

Side Elevatlon _Render
Scale:

Single rear door to
Kilchen/diing

Rear Elevation_Brick
Scale: 1:100

3D View_Rear Elevation
Scale:

Slate effect te roof

Dark grey gutters.
downpipe
Brick soldier
course lintel
Double glazed
windows

Facing brickwork to
local authority approval

Slate effect te roof

Darkgry uters
and dowr

Brick soldier
course fintel

Stone cil

2700 .
& _First Foor

Singlo rear door to
Kitchen/dining

3
~_Ground Fioor

Rear Elevation_Render
Scale: 1:100

windows

Off-white
render finish

— Facing brick plinth

Oom 2m 4m 6m
e s s ]

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

Notes

Figured dimensions are to be used i all case.
Dimensions should not be scaled from drawing

of the work.
Any discrepancies in dimensions should be clarified with the Architect prior
to commencement of the work.

No Gaviaio (rom tis rawing willbe permited wihout the pir witen
consent of the Architect

‘This rawing is o be read in conjunction with allthe relevant Mechanical
and Electrical drawings.

“This drawing is o be read

conjunction with the relevant Structural
I calcul

“This drawing is o be read in conjunction with the relevant Fire Safety
Strategy drawings

Thscraving s copyight and o beretuied 0 e rciect o competion
of the contra

385P House - Gross Interal Area

T Area
Ground Floor o
[FrstFloor 04
Grand toal 08

385 House Room Schedule
Ground Fioor
[accessible wo .05
o 50 .
y e
itchen 7 diner e
lounge ™
storage 49
tallcpd 3
520m
First Floor
athroom a2
bedroom 1 12,69
bedroom 2 14.01 e
bedroom 3 660mF
alay 765
a519me
bulkhead cpd
075
Grand total ot1ame

T EAIED
T o] b

o =
[Fev. [ ovsinsesrpton

Lovelock Mitchell Architects
o Staley st Grestr, CH1 215
Tel +44 (0) 1244 404321

emall aamin@lovsockmihel.com
‘wwwlovelockmitchell.com

Project
Pennaf Housing
Mold Road, Mynydd Isa

Tile
3B5P House - Floor Plans, Elevations and
3D Views as Proposed

LA Project| Drawing number Rov.

1567 | PMI-LMA-XX-XX-DR-A-2004 | P1

i B




Statement from Local Ward Member

Dear members ,

The impact of this planning application as it stands unfairly impacts on a bungalow Schallion on Rose
lane .They would be faced with a brick wall size 6meters long by over 6 meters high right on their
boundary fence which is less than 10 meters from the rear of their dining room /conservatory ,not only
will it take all the natural light they now have away from their room it will ,by way of its size and
position mean the whole of the rear garden would be permanently overshadowed. It is possible for the
architects to reposition these three homes by 90 degrees ,as was the original approval given to muller
which WG approved ,without loss of number of housing units.

The piece of land has the benefit of some beautiful majestic mature trees which are going to be felled
to make way for a road into the site. In this time when we are being encouraged to look after the
planet it makes no sense to remove something so important to the planet!We do need the homes ,that
has never been the issue here,it is the developers understanding that they can build new affordable
homes without destroying the environment where you are building them .Please look closely at this ,it
isn’t about refusal,its about conditions you are able to place on the developer to ensure that the mature
trees remain ,and the impact of a huge walled gable end doesn’t happen ,the developer can turn that
particular home so that it is a rear garden to rear garden scenario with little impact .1f you had of been
allowed to have visited the site in person you would have seen exactly what the impact would be if
you allow this planning application to go through as it is, | ask you to look at the pictures taken so you
can get some sort of impression of the site and the impact putting a gable end two storey wall right
next to the property will have on the existing property.

Thank you for taking the time to look at and read through this statement.

Tudalen 34



Statement from Community Council

Dear Sirs,

We support the comments of the local Councillor entirely.
Yours faithfully,

Community Council

Tudalen 35



Statement fromAgent

Clwyd Alyn purchased this site in November 2018 and since that time have been working
with consultants to design a scheme that meets the needs of the Housing waiting lists and
local community.

The project would provide 56 homes, with a mixture of houses and apartments supported
by the Council’s Housing Strategy Team and specified to address the needs of the local
community. Mynydd Isa has not benefited from a new Affordable housing project for many years
and there is an acute demand for a range of property types.

Clwyd Alyn is a committed member of Flintshire’s Strategic Housing Partnership which is
accountable for the delivery of Flintshire’s Local Housing Strategy. One of the key objectives of
the current Local Housing Strategy is to increase the supply of affordable housing which this
project supports. This project will also deliver high quality, energy efficient homes, ensuring they
are affordable to rent.

The homes will meet the Welsh Governments high standards in terms of space and
habitability and also embed Clwyd Alyn’s high quality specification of materials and
components ensuring its long life and appearance remains into the future.

Designs have evolved taking into account the need for homes in this area and the particular
constraints and opportunities the site has offered.

There is an opportunity with this proposal to seize investment for the area and for Flintshire
to access Welsh Government money for the benefit of the community and delivering more
housing solutions, something which is being driven at the highest national level.

Tudalen 36



Statement from Local Resident - Objector

Application no. 061572

Development land rear of 66A Mold Road, Mynydd Isa, Mold, CH7 6TD
Objector

We have for a long time been aware that the land behind our bungalow would eventually be built
on, and have accepted this. However, these plans have quite frankly astounded us!

We live on Rose Lane and the plans show a block of 3 houses the gable end of which is on our
boundary. How is this equitable, when no other properties will be affected in this way. The plans
show the apparently recommended distance between these houses and our property, of 14m.
However the measurement of 14m actually extends to within our living space (conservatory which
we use as living/dining room). This as | am sure you can imagine will significantly impact on our
privacy and light as we will be looking at a 2 strorey brick wall! In turn this will certainly impact on
our quality of life.

Clwyd Alyn Housing assured that they would work with the residents to produce a plan that would
be acceptable to all. | see that this plan maybe acceptable to some as they have bungalows or
gardens backing onto their properties, but it is certainly not acceptable to us! Muller Property
Development originally submitted similar plans with a house gable end on our boundary and when
we objected to this FCC supported us.

Regards

Tudalen 37



Statement from Local Resident - Supporter

Ref.No. 061572

Development of Land rear of 66a, Mold Road, Mynydd Isa, Mold. CH7 6TD

Rose Lane residents

By supporting the proposal we hope that all concerns / suggestions previously submitted be seriously considered.
A successful development in the best intrests of all concerned could be achieved by

a) constructing bungalows on the higher ground, storeyd housing in the dip

b) reducing the number of dwellings to avoid anti social alleyways

c¢) considering quality of life for the future residents of the proposed development and the current surrounding
residents.

Thanking you

Tudalen 38



REPORT TO:
DATE.

REPORT BY:

SUBJECT:

APPLICATION
NUMBER:

APPLICANT:
SITE:

APPLICATION VALID

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6.2

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 2 DECEMBER 2020

CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT AND
ECONOMY)

059396 - FULL APPLICATION - ERECTION OF 80
DWELLINGS, CONVENIENCE STORE AND
ASSOCIATED DEVELOPMENT AT COPPY FARM,
CILCAIN ROAD, GWERNAFFIELD.

059396

BROMFIELD GROUP LIMITED

COPPY FARM, CILCAIN ROAD, GWERNAFFIELD

9™ JANUARY 2019

DATE.

LOCAL MEMBERS:

COUNCILLOR ADELE DAVIES COOKE

TOWN/COMMUNITY
COUNCIL:

REASON FOR
COMMITTEE:

SITE VISIT:

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01

GWERNAFFIELD COMMUNITY COUNCIL

SIZE OF PROPOSAL

YES

This is a full application for the erection of 80 no. dwellings, a convenience

store and associated development at Coppy Farm, Cilcain Road,

Gwernaffield.

200 RECOMMENDATION: TO REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR THE
FOLLOWING REASONS
2.01 1. Iltis considered that there is insufficient evidence to identify the need

to bring forward this speculative site outside the settlement boundary
of Mold. In the absence of the evidence of need, and in light of the
satisfactory levels of residential housing completions, commitments
and allocations as set out in the planned housing trajectory in the
Deposit LDP, the Council does not attach considerable weight to the
need to increase housing delivery. The proposal therefore conflicts
with the principles set out in section 4.2 of PPW 10 as it would

Tudalen 39



3.00

3.01

prejudice the plan-led system with respect to the most appropriate
housing sites from being brought forward as set out in the Deposit
LDP.

The Local Planning Authority considers that insufficient information
has been submitted to ensure that the proposal has fully taken
account of bats and any other European Protected Species being
present on the site into account. In the absence of adequate
surveys, mitigation and reasonable avoidance measures it is not
possible to demonstrate that the proposal adequately takes account
of the European Protected Species and as such is contrary to
policies GEN 1 and WB1 of the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan.
Furthermore the proposal fails to safeguard protected and priority
species from impacts which directly affect their conservation status
as required by Planning Policy Wales 10.

In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal provides
insufficient provision for affordable housing. As such, the proposal is
contrary to policies STR4 and HSG11 of the Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan.

In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal provides
an inadequate level of onsite play and recreational space for the
numbers of dwellings proposed. As such the proposal is contrary to
policy SR5 in the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan and the
guidance found within Local Planning Guidance Note 13: Open
Space Requirements.

In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal does not
provide an appropriate mix of dwelling size and type and would
therefore fail to create a mixed and socially inclusive community. As
such the proposal is contrary to policy HSG9 of the Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan.

In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the layout, by virtue of
its inadequate private amenity space with regard to specific plots
upon the site, would give rise to adverse living conditions for future
and neighbouring residents. As such it is contrary to policy STR1 of
the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan and the advice contained
within SPGN2- Space Around Dwellings.

CONSULTATIONS

Local Member

Councillor Adele Davies Cooke

No response at time of writing due to lack of information submitted with the
planning application.

Gwernaffield Pantymwyn Community Council

Object to the proposal on the following grounds:

Contrary to planning polices and Government planning advice
Impact upon residential amenity

Tudalen 40



e Impact upon character and appearance of area
e Impact upon community facilities

Highways Development Control

Highways Development Control have no objection to the proposal and
request conditions and advisory notes.

The Streetscene Area Manager and Transport Manager consider the
proposal acceptable, subject to proposed off-site works being carried out.

Community and Business Protection

No objection in principle to development. Requires conditions for
contaminated land, as well as noise and light during the construction
phase of development.

Housing Strategy
In terms of evidence of housing need in Gwernaffield:

The Local Housing Market Assessment (LHMA) for Flintshire identifies
an annual shortfall of 246 affordable units; (NB. This figure has since
been update to 228 afordable units)

The LHMA identifies a need for primarily 1 bed (14%), 2 bed (31.6%),
and 3 bed (28.5%), split relatively evenly between Social rented
(56.2%) and intermediate (43.8%) tenures;

The need for affordable housing in Gwernaffield is as follows:

Size Social Affordable Rent | Affordable
Ownership
1bed 5 (for over
55’s)
2bed 6 8 3
3bed 3 1

There is some need for affordable housing in the area, with a mix of social
rent, shared equity and affordable rent. Of the social rented properties 8
are for people aged over 55 years, which can be delivered through a
Housing Association.

The proposed affordable housing provision of 2no. gifted units is not
supported.

Education and Youth Services

Schools Affected:Primary

Ysgol Y Waun
Current NOR 97 (Excluding Nursery)

Tudalen 41



Capacity 107 (Excluding Nursery)
No. of Surplus Places: 10
Percentage of Surplus places: 9.35%
Secondary

Ysgol Maes Garmon, Mold

Current NOR 529

Capacity 711
No. of Surplus Places: 182
Percentage of Surplus places: 25.60%

Primary School Pupils

School capacity 107 x 5% = 5.35 (5)
107 — 5 = 102 Trigger point for contributions is 102 pupils

(No. of units) 80 x 0.24 (primary formula multiplier) = 19.2 (19 No. of pupils
generated) x £12,257 per pupil (Building Cost multiplier) = £232,833

Actual pupils 97 + 19 (from the multiplier) = 116 meets trigger

116-102 = 14 x £12,257 = £171,598.00 (cannot ask for more contributions
that development generates)

Contribution requirement would be £171,598.00

Secondary School Pupils

School capacity of 711 x 5% = 35.55 (36)
Capacity 711 - 36 = 675 Trigger point for contributions is 1178 pupils.

(No. of Units) 80 x 0.174 (secondary formula multiplier) = 13.92 (14 No. of
pupils) generated 14 x £18,469 per pupil (Building Cost multiplier) =
£258,566.00

Actual pupils 529+36=565, does not meet trigger of 675

Contribution requirement would be £0.00

Aura

In accordance with PGN13 Public Open Space provision, the development
should provide play and recreation facilities. The Authority would require a
centrally located area of POS to be in the region of 4500m2 of designated

play and recreation facilities.

Welsh Water/Dwr Cymru

Tudalen 42



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

Drainage arrangements are acceptable in principle. Requests conditions
and notation.

Natural Resources Wales

Would object to the scheme if a bat survey and report is not provided to
assess the extent of adverse impacts on any bats and other European
protected species, with any avoidance and mitigation measures required.
Airbus

No aerodrome safeguarding objection to the proposal

Wales and West Utilities

No apparatus in area of enquiry.

PUBLICITY
Press Notice, Site, Notice, Neighbour Notification

92 Letters of objection
e Impact upon character of village

e Scale
e Lack of play provision
e Density

e Loss of privacy, intrusion

¢ Road safety

e Contrary to policy

e Housing mix- too many 4/5 bed dwellings
e Loss of agricultural land

e Subsidence problems locally

9 Letters of Support
e Village needs investment
e Difficult place to find a property to buy
e Wil help sustain community
e Shop will benefit local community
¢ Improve footpaths
e Good for local businesses

SITE HISTORY

056664- Erection of farm shop and associated works, formation of new
vehicular and pedestrian access- Approved 16/06/2017

PLANNING POLICIES

Flintshire Unitary Development Plan
STR1 - New Development

Tudalen 43



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

STR4 — Housing

STRY7 — Natural Environment

STR8 - Built Environment

STR10 - Resources

GENT1 - General Requirements for New Development
GENS3 - Development Outside Settlement Boundaries
D1 - Design Quality, Location and Layout

D2 - Design

D3 - Landscaping

WB1 - Species Protection

HE8- Recording of Historic Features

AC13 - Access and Traffic Impact

AC18 - Parking Provision and New Development
HSG4 — New Dwellings Outside Settlement Boundaries
HSG8 - Density of Development

HSG9 - Housing Mix and Type

HSG11 - Affordable Housing in Rural Areas

RE1 — Protection of Agricultural Land

SR5 - Qutdoor Play Space and New Residential Development
Local/Supplementary Planning Guidance Notes
Developers Guidance Note — speculative development
LPGN 2 - Space around dwellings

LPGN 9 - Affordable Housing

LPGN 11 - Parking Standards

LPGN 13 - Open Space Requirements

Planning Policy Wales Edition 10 December 2018

PLANNING APPRAISAL

Proposal

This is a full planning application for the erection of 80 dwellings,
convenience store and associated development, at land at Coppy farm,
Cilcain Road, Gwernaffield.

The application represents a departure from the provisions of the
Development Plan, and has been advertised as such.

The application is subject to an Article 18, Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012, Holding
Direction from Welsh Government. This Direction has been issued to
enable further consideration to be given to whether or not the
application should be referred to the Welsh Ministers for their
determination.

The Direction prevents the Council only from granting planning
permission; it does not prevent it from continuing to process or consult
on the application. Neither does it prevent it from refusing planning
permission. This report has been shared with Welsh Government.

Site

Tudalen 44



7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

The application site extends to approximately 3.01 hectares in size and is
located on the edge of the settlement of Gwernaffield

The site is partly within the settlement boundary of Gwernaffield in the
adopted UDP but is, for the most part, approximately 2.69 hectares of the
entire site, outside the settlement boundary, and therefore considered to be
in open countryside. Similarly, a small section of the land, approximately
0.32 hectares of the site would be considered to be previously developed
land, but the majority of the application site is undeveloped agricultural land.

The land slopes from the north to the south, with a gentle to moderate slope
running towards the highway which bounds the site to the south. Site
boundaries are currently generally treated with native species field
hedgerows

Principle

Gwernaffield is a category C settlement in the Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan and had an indicative growth band of 0-10%. The
proposed housing development is not for ‘rural enterprise’ dwellings and is
not an affordable housing rural exceptions scheme and therefore does not
comply with Flintshire Unitary Development Plan policies. By way of further
context for the settlement Policy HSG3 required that any new dwellings
within the settlement boundary would have to meet a proven local need.

Housing Land Supply

Since the application was submitted, Welsh Government has announced it
has permanently revoked TAN1. The result of this is that there is no longer
a requirement to maintain a 5 year supply of housing land. Instead, housing
delivery for each authority will be measured against the trajectory in the
adopted LDP. This is a significant material change in relation to the
applicant’s case which promotes a site on the basis of an exception to the
relevant housing policy in the Unitary Development Plan as it would help
meet a shortfall in the 5 year housing land supply. This is no longer a directly
relevant consideration.

In relation to the new approach to measuring housing provision against the
LDP trajectory, whilst the LDP is not yet adopted, Welsh

Government have confirmed that the use of the Deposit LDP trajectory is a
material consideration in assessing applications such as this proposal. In
terms of present LDP performance in enabling the delivery of housing, in
the first 4 years of the LDP Plan period, the County has seen annual
completions of 662 (2016), 421 (2017), 608

(2018) and 454 (2019) which gives a total of 2,145 completions or an
average of 536 units per annum. This is in excess of the Plan requirement
of 6950 dwellings (or 463 units per annum) and is very close to the Plan’s
housing provision of 7,950 dwellings (or 530 units

per annum). The LDP is therefore on track to deliver the amount of housing
it is required to meet.

In respect of the previous terms of TAN1, the Council could not formally
undertake or demonstrate a 5 year supply calculation, as it does not have
an up to date adopted development plan. The Council can, however,
provide informal calculations of supply. Firstly a measurement of supply

Tudalen 45



7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

against past completions has been undertaken which shows that over a 5
year period the land supply is 5.59 years and over a 10 year period the land
supply is 6.79 years. Secondly, a measurement against the Plan’s annual
average requirement has been undertaken which shows, against an
average requirement of 463 units there is a land supply of 6.6 years.
Although these figures have no formal standing, either at the time TAN1
was in force, or since its permanent revocation, they clearly demonstrate
that the County does indeed have a supply of housing land not only
available, but also being delivered.

In addition to the position set out in the above monitoring data there is also
the additional supply provided by allocations in the Deposit LDP. A
Background Paper on Housing land Supply was published alongside the
LDP which explains the various components of housing land supply and
sets out a Housing Trajectory to illustrate delivery over the Plan period.
Appendix 4 and 5 of that background paper shows a 5 year supply can be
achieved on adoption. The evidence base alongside the Deposit LDP
clearly demonstrates that a 5 year housing land supply can be delivered.

In the context of the new arrangements for monitoring housing provision,
notwithstanding that the LDP is not yet adopted, evidence of actual housing
provision in the first four years of the plan period demonstrates that the plan
is in line with its draft trajectory, which is a material consideration in
determining this application for a site not allocated in the UDP or emerging
LDP. It is also important to mention that Welsh Government, in their formal
representations on the Deposit Plan have no fundamental concerns about
the soundness of the Plan. In their covering letter Welsh Government states
‘The Welsh Government is generally supportive of the spatial strategy and
level of homes and jobs proposed and has no fundamental concerns in this
respect’. In the supporting document the Welsh Government ‘support in
principle’ the scale and location of homes and jobs. This formal response
does not suggest that there are concerns about the Plan ‘not delivering’ or
being unsound.

Sustainability

The settlement sits within the bottom tier of the settlement hierarchy and the
Flintshire Unitary Development Plan Inspector generally commented that
such settlements were relatively unsustainable in terms of their facilities and
services. The growth rates for settlements were not targets and were
intended to guide levels of development. The proposed development of 80
dwellings would result in a growth over the Local Development Plan period
of 23.5% which is a significant growth for such a settlement. In the context
of the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan settlement hierarchy such a level
of growth would sit in excess of that for category B settlements (8-15%) and
category A settlements (10-20%). The level of growth that would be
experienced in Gwernaffield would be completely at odds with the spatial
strategy in the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan.

The emerging Local Development Plan also provides a useful context for
the proposal. The Local Development Plan has a 5 tier settlement hierarchy
and Gwernaffield sits within the 4" tier as a Defined Village. This was based
on a comprehensive set of settlement audits for some 80 plus settlements
and had regard to services and facilities, character, size, accessibility and

Tudalen 46



717

7.18

7.19

7.20

sustainability. The spatial strategy in terms of housing is set out in policy
ST2 of the Preferred Strategy which directs new allocations to the first three
tiers. No new allocations will be identified in tier 4 or 5 settlements reflecting
their relative lack of sustainability. Whilst the agent claims that the
settlement is ‘highly’ sustainable the position of the settlement in the
Flintshire Unitary Development Plan hierarchy and the body of evidence in
the settlement audits which informed the Local Development Plan
settlement hierarchy does not reflect this.

The Flintshire Unitary Development Plan is still the adopted Plan for the
County and even though its housing policies and settlement boundaries are
out of date, its basic spatial strategy is still soundly based. Planning
decisions must be made in the context of a sensible spatial strategy. The
Local Development Plan also provides a more up to date spatial strategy
and neither sees Gwernaffield as being appropriate or sustainable to
accommodate such a scale of development. It is accepted that there is a
housing need associated with Local Development Plan Plan period but this
is presently being met by the average level of completions being delivered.
Sensible planning cannot be discarded just because the Council cannot
demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply.

In addition, the agent makes reference to other settlements such as Rhes y
Cae and Llanfynydd having growth rates well in excess of the 10%. This
should not be interpreted as being the ‘norm’ as this was largely based on
earlier planning permissions that contributed to Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan growth. In fact, it was such high levels of growth in these
and other category C settlements, which the Inspector was concerned about
in terms of sustainability. It was what led to the Inspector firming up policy
HSG3 to ensure that any additional dwellings up to a ceiling of 10% in such
settlements had to be to meet a proven local need.

It is acknowledged that the proposal also includes a convenience store
which enhances its sustainable credentials. This convenience store
replaces one previously given planning permission on the Coppy farm site,
within the settlement boundary. This alone, and in the absence of further
appraisals or robust evidence identifying the sustainable merits of the
scheme, and taken together with the lack of affordable housing provision,
and public open space within the site cannot be relied upon to make the site
be considered sustainable. | consider that in the planning balance the
proposal does not represent a sustainable form of development.

Ecology

An ecological survey has been submitted with the application. Whilst this
survey did consider the existence of bats at the site, and concluded that
there was no evidence of this protected species being present.
Notwithstanding this report it has been considered by both Natural
Resources Wales, and by the Council’s Ecologist, that given the reasonable
likelihood of bats being present, further specific bat surveys and reports
should be undertaken that fully assess the extent of adverse affects of the
development on any bats and other European protected species found to

Tudalen 47



7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

be present, and to identify any avoidance or mitigation measures required.
Until these further assessments have been carried out there is no assurance
that the development would not unacceptably harm protected species or
their habitats and, as such, this element must be considered a significant
impediment to the acceptability of the scheme.

Further surveys have been requested from the applicant but have not been
provided. Therefore, | consider that as it stands the development proposal
would be contrary to policies WB1 of the Flintshire Unitary Development
Plan and PPW 10 as the proposal cannot meet the necessary requirements
to address the potential presence of protected or priority species.

Affordable Housing

The proposal shows 2 units, to be gifted to the Council, as affordable
provision for the site.

In terms of evidence of housing need in Gwernaffield The Local Housing
Market Assessment (LHMA) for Flintshire, which is the strategic document
which frames the overarching housing need and is developed using rigorous
data sources, identifies an annual shortfall of 228 affordable units.

The LHMA identifies a need for primarily 1 bed (14%), 2 bed (31.6%), and
3 bed (28.5%), split relatively evenly between Social rented (56.2%) and
intermediate (43.8%) tenures;

The need for affordable housing in Gwernaffield is as follows:

Size Social Affordable Rent | Affordable
Ownership
1bed 5 (for over
55’s)
2bed 6 8 3
3bed 3 1

It is clear from the LHMA figures that there is some need for affordable
housing in the area, with a mix of social rent, shared equity and affordable
rent. It is not considered that the offer of 2 no. gifted units would adequately
address this need, or provide a suitable level of affordable housing on this
development of the size proposed.

The site lies predominantly outside of the settlement boundary for
Gwernaffield and as such the proposal is contrary to the housing policies,
as previously discussed. Even if this were not the case, the affordable
housing provision would not accord with policy HSG10, which requires a
residential development to meet the identified need, or to provide 30%
affordable housing across the site . The current proposal does neither.

Public Open Space

Tudalen 48



7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

In accordance with policy SR5 of the Flinshire Unitary Development Plan,
and guidance within SPGN-13, a development of this size should be
providing on-site play and recreation facilities. In accordance with this
guidance it has been calculated that the development should provide a
centrally located play are of 4500m2 rather than relying on off site provision.
This area should have a buffer of 20 metres from any dwelling.

It is considered that in general outdoor playing space should always be
provided on site. Whilst it may be acceptable to offset a lack of on-site
provision with financial contributions, this is only acceptable in exceptional
circumstances. It has not been explained by the developer what these
circumstances may be. In the absence of this information then the advice of
Aura Leisure is considered to be applicable and the proposal fails to provide
the requested level of equipped play space.

As the proposal does not propose any public open space it instead seeks
to enhance connectivity between the site and a nearby existing play area,
located to the west of Rhydymwyn road. | consider that even if it were
accepted that an equipped play area would not be required if the existing
facility which is easily accessible from the site and can be upgraded, it would
still be appropriate to provide informal playing space and other public open
space, which the proposal lacks. As such, | consider that the proposal fails
to comply with the relevant planning policies with regard to outdoor playing
space.

Design, Location, layout

Planning Policy Wales 10 states, in paragraph 3.14: “Site and context
analysis should be used to determine the appropriateness of a development
proposal in responding to its surroundings. This process will ensure that a
development is well integrated into the fabric of the existing built
environment. The analysis process will highlight constraints and
opportunities presented by existing settlement structure and uses,
landscape, biodiversity, water environment, movement, infrastructure,
materials and resources, soundscape and built form which will need to be
considered when formulating proposals.”

It is considered essential that any development in a small village such as
Gwernaffield should respect the general local vernacular style of building
and their existing layout. At the moment a visitor is greeted with late
nineteenth century cottages on one side of the road, with earlier examples
set behind, whilst on the opposite site there is a grand entrance to the former
Vicarage with some modest mid-twentieth century single storey dwellings.
The majority of these are small in size and scale likely to have been homes
occupied by farm working families that may have been employed by the
nearby Rhual estate. The grand stone built Vicarage is much larger in both
size and scale than the adjacent period style properties and signifies a
hierarchical status amongst dwellings in the village with Rhual being the
most significant in size and grandeur. In regard to the built environment it
has to be said that a distinctive rural character is in existence at this entry
point, consisting in the main of small or simple vernacular dwellings and
which continue in essence throughout the rest of the village. Larger

Tudalen 49



7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

buildings are found, but they tend to have a communal use and include the
church and a public house.

The house-types being proposed in this application would appear to have
little regard to the rural vernacular style and character that exists currently
in Gwernaffield. The size of these new buildings being proposed would
appear to be out of scale to the smaller properties they will sit next to and it
is clear from the individual house drawings that they have not been
designed to complement the local style. The house types chosen for this
development are typical large volume development house-types more
typical of housing developments on the outskirts of large towns and cities.
These type of developments often tend to have the hallmark of a particular
developer, rather than corresponding to a particular local vernacular style.

The proposed layout would also appear to have taken on the form of a
typical housing estate with houses sited in oblique and obscure angles and
with little or no regard to the neighbouring buildings, either other houses on
the scheme or existing houses on the periphery of the site. It appears that
the main focus has been on delivering a high density of units, rather than
having any particular regard to local vernacular density. As the proposed
development will be located on one of the principal roads into the village it
will mean that some the new buildings will front the road and others back
onto the open fields. These essentially will give the visitor their first
impression of this small rural village.

It is clear that one of the house types being proposed for the main road
location differ in design and also their position to the existing properties
which does not create a positive or attractive frontage. The terrace is of
three storeys if you include the dormer windows of the second floor. This
type of fenestration is not a common feature within the village, and there are
no examples of any other prominent dormers within the streetscene. These
properties are also set further forward than a historic terrace which is their
immediate neighbour. The large detached new build units that are located
on the outer edge of estate road will create the new village boundary, and it
is considered that as a result of the developer house-type design and dense
layout this will unfortunately give the impression to anyone entering on this
road that they are entering a much large town rather than small rural village.
As such it is not considered that the proposed house types either protects
the character and amenity of the locality or adds to the quality and
distinctiveness of the local area and as such is contrary to policy D2 of the
Flintshire Unitary Development Plan.

The housing mix proposed is heavily biased towards 4/5 bed dwellings, with
68 of the 80 dwellings at this size, and does not have regard to the findings
of the Local Housing Market Assessment which places greater emphasis
on 1, 2 and 3 bed dwellings. It is considered that the mix proposed would
not assist in creating mixed or socially cohesive communities. Taken
together with the lack of affordable housing, discussed above, it is unlikely
that the houses provided would be accessible to younger people or families,
which is a stated aim of the proposal. As the proposal fails to take local
housing need into account | consider that it fails to meet the requirements
of policy HSG9 of the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan.

Tudalen 50



7.37

7.38

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

Living conditions

The proposed site plan does not provide plot numbers which introduces
difficulty in articulating precise issues per plot. However, there are repeated
reduced interface distances and garden sizes throughout the proposal. The
terrace of dwellings identified as ‘E’s have a difficult relationship with Moel
View and sit awkwardly with relation to the existing houses adjacent to them.
The gardens serving the proposed dwellings ‘E’s and ‘F’s are substandard
in length and area, offering almost no outside rear space to the proposed
dwellings. There is a proposed dwelling which backs on to Penyffordd Field,
on the eastern area of the site, which also appears to have no garden area
proposed at all. The dwellings proposed on the eastern edge of the site all
appear to have a reduced garden depth which falls below the recommended
distances in SPGN2- Space Around Dwellings.

Private amenity space is important to the wellbeing of residents and to allow
quiet enjoyment, children’s playspace, drying clothes, and so forth. By
failing to provide these on a number of the plots it is considered that the
proposal fails to comply with the advice contained within SPGN2- Space
Around dwellings and policy STR1 and in general provides an inadequate
form of development which would be detrimental to the living conditions of
both existing and proposed residents.

Agricultural Land value

Flintshire Unitary Development Plan policy RE1 seeks to protect grades 1,2
and 3a land unless there is an overriding need for the development; the
development cannot be accommodated on derelict, non-agricultural or
lower grade agricultural land, or available lower grade land has an
environmental value or designation which outweighs the agricultural
considerations.

A soils and agricultural land quality report was submitted with the
application. Welsh Government’'s Land Value unit have assessed the
supporting evidence and consider that its findings can be accepted.

The report shows that 33% of the land is at grade 3a, with the remaining
64% of the land at a lower grade, subgrade 3b or 4. The subgrade 3a land
is considered to be unsuitable for arable uses due to agro-climatic
conditions which leave the ground too wet for parts of the year. The land is
currently used for grazing. The land is considered to be predominantly lower
agricultural grades due to its shallow depth. | do not consider that the
proposal would be contrary to policy RE1. In all cases where agricultural
land is affected by a development proposal, it will be necessary to take into
account the size, structure and viability of the farm unit and the location of
the proposed development in order to minimize unnecessary disruption to
agriculture and farm structure. In the case of Coppy Farm this is a small
farm unit that may be unsuitable for modern farming methods without
significant investment.

Welsh Government have considered the information submitted in support of
the application and have given the view that its findings can be relied upon.
As such | do not consider that the proposal would represent an
unacceptable loss of agricultural land.

Tudalen 51



7.43

7.44

7.45

7.46

7.47

7.48

7.49

7.50

Planning Obligations

The infrastructure and monetary contributions that can be required from a
planning application through a S106 agreement have to be assessed under
Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations
2010 and Welsh Office Circular 13/97 ‘Planning Obligations’.

It is unlawful for a planning obligation to be taken into account when
determining a planning application for a development, or any part of a
development, if the obligation foes not meet all of the following regulation
122 tests;

1.be necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
2. be directly related to the development; and
3. be fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development

It would be usual for a development proposal of this scale, for planning
obligations to be imposed covering education contributions, discussed
below and securing the tenure and type of affordable dwellings on site, as
well as contributions to public open space. | have discussed in the
paragraphs above why the provision of affordable dwellings and public open
space is considered to be unacceptable.

Were it considered to be acceptable to provide financial contributions to
provide an upgrading of offsite equipped play areas then the contribution
required would be calculated at a rate of £1,100 per dwelling (£733.00 per
affordable dwelling) in accordance with the Local Planning Guidance Note.

Education

As part of the planning consultation, Education and Youth services have
calculated the impact of the proposed development upon the local Primary
and Secondary Schools. The capacity of Ysgol y Waun, Gwernaffield is
107, excluding the Nursery, with 10 surplus places, the capacity of Ysgol
Maes Garmon, Mold, is 711, with 182 surplus places. In accordance with
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 23-Developer Contributions to
Education contributions it was concluded that only the primary school would
hit the triggers identified in that guidance, and as such contributions would
only be sought for this school.

As the trigger point for the contributions at Ysgol y Waun is 102, and the
development, which is calculated to generate 19 more pupils, would result
in 116 pupils at the school, it is considered that a figure of £171,958.00
would be sought from this development.

Therefore if Members were minded to approve the proposal | consider that
it would be a lawful request in accordance with Regulation 123 of the CIL
Regulations.

Other Matters

Tudalen 52



7.51

7.52

7.53

7.54

8.00

After consultation between Highways Development Control and highways
consultants working on behalf of the applicant initial concerns regarding the
adequacy of the proposal from a highways point of view, and with regard to
the impact of the proposal on the wider highways network, it is considered
that the proposals are acceptable subject to the imposition of conditions,
and the entering into of a Section 278 agreement under the 1980 Highways
Act, which would secure a scheme for off-site highways improvements
including footway widening, traffic calming, street lighting and bus stop
facilities. These conditions would be imposed should Members be minded
to grant the proposal planning permission.

The drainage arrangements submitted with the proposal, namely that it is
intended that foul water flows would be disposed of via the public sewerage
system, are considered to be acceptable in principle by Dwr Cymru Welsh
Water, and no problems are envisaged with the Waste Water Treatment
Works for the treatment of domestic discharges from the site. It is
considered that it would be appropriate to require the submission of full
drainage details prior to the commencement of development.

Coppy Farm and its outbuildings, which would be demolished as part of this
proposal, appear on the first edition Ordnance Survey map of 1872 and are
therefore at least 148 years old. It is considered that whilst not listed the
buildings are of local architectural and historic importance and as such
should Members be minded to grant the proposal planning permission then
a condition requiring an appropriate photographic survey to be undertaken
before the buildings are demolished.

Third parties have identified potential issues of subsidence. These are
structural matters which would be addressed outside the planning process
by the Building Control Regulations.

Matters have been raised in support of the proposal, namely the village to
require investment, shortage of housing and that the proposal would sustain
and benefit the local community. However, it is considered that none of
these factors outweigh the unjustified harm the proposal would cause to the
open countryside.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion | do not consider that such a scale of development is
appropriate or sustainable in Gwernaffield. It is contrary to the spatial
Strategy in both the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan and emerging
Local Development Plan. In addition there are a number of technical
reasons why | consider the proposal to be unacceptable and contrary to the
relevant Flintshire Unitary Development Plan policies and PPW10 in terms
of the ecological issues on site, affordable housing, public open space,
housing mix and with regard to sufficient amenity space provision . As such
| recommend that the application is refused for the reasons given in
paragraph 2.01.

Tudalen 53



8.01

Other Considerations

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 17 of the Crime
and Disorder Act 1998 and considered that there would be no significant
or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a result of the
recommended decision.

The Council has acted in accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998
including Article 8 of the Convention and in a manner which is necessary
in a democratic society in furtherance of the legitimate aims of the Act and
the Convention.

The Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty under the
Equality Act 2010.

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 3 of the
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and considered that
there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the
achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the recommended
decision.

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy

Responses to Consultation

Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: James Beattie
Telephone: 01352 703262
Email: james.beattie@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 54


mailto:james.beattie@flintshire.gov.uk

5!
Bryn Goleu g
&/

/
/

i

Waen

Farm
Waen
Farm
Aderyn Rock House
Ridge

o Track
!
/

Application Site

oxtree

Cottage Play Area

GWERNAFFIELD

School
House P
Pen-y-ffordd
Holy
Trinity
Church
o
Pen-y-ffc
D srony el ]
o
% Apple Tre!
House
Cemetery
\
?e\“\\\“\\ N B
CYNGOR . Planning, Environment & Economy,
SII‘ Y Fﬂlnt Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
. . Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.
Flintshire o
COUNTY COUNCIL Chief Officer. Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material

with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's

Leg en d Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Licence number: 100023386.

Flintshire County Council, 2020.

Planning Application Site

| Map Scale 1:2500 |

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan |05 Map ref SJ 2064 |

- BN e 213. d%f@ﬂeBSoundary
! Location Plan Scale 1:50‘50(_)0

A onssrkeads N PH AL

|PIanningAppIicati0n 59396 |




CHURCH LANE

BEDW

.
=

v

J
— ]

I Dunveg%an
L .

‘f — |

1 Highﬁeld
L
| Avondale

=

New Dwelling
See Rlanning App. 057595

1.2M Wide Link Path

( School [7— \’J 7

| =
|
L,Li School
- .
L ouse
Hall |
— '77171 = ‘\—-
‘\ ]
[ J— Holy
gL | | o,
| 1 Trinity

PROPOSQD HOUSING - GWERNAFIELD

AWING TITLE
E Loc;m\org

Church

SEPT 2018 ‘ Scﬁi&lﬁno @AL ‘
DRAWING NO REVISION
AL0000 -
5M 25M 50M
O [ ]
|}
M 10M

Pen-y-ffo




ae Mawr

CWalnut Cottage

Z/
7

Z
7

7 ,
A

//

N\
N
\

\\

\
\

T
|11 o

- LA

2
BWLCH DDEUFRYN

PROPOSED HOUSING - GWERNAFIELD

DRAWING TITLE
PROPOSED SITE PLAN + TOPO
SEPT 2018 ‘ Scale : 1:500 @ AL ‘
DRAWING NO REVISION
AL0002
M N 25M 50M
[ ]
] —
M 10M N
Existing O/H Power Lines Removed
From Site & Redirected
Indicative Proposed Landscaping
Existing trees and hedges retained
/,/ 1800 High Garden Fence
Vd
Ingicative Parking Space
Shared Diives
oo Propased pedestrian and cydle link

Pen-y-ffordd g;z

197.5m




Byd ]

PROPOSED HOUSING - GWERNAFIELD

N
DRAWING TITLE
PROPOSED SITE PLAN
SEPT 2018 ‘ Scale : 1:500 @ A1 ‘
DRAWING NO REVISION
AL0003
0 M 25M 50M
o> [ ]
] —
M 10M N

% Indicative Proposed Landscaping

( “\oi ) Edsting rees and hedges retained
NV
/ .
// 1800 High Garden Fence
S
Indicative Parking Space
New Dwelling raredon
 flonning | ared Drives
1.2M Wide Link Path - repote pdstana ik
Pen-y-ffordd <
| www;
(1] i
K
Y 197.5m




E4[EIY
n

FRONT ELEVATION

G usjepny

Ground floor plan

N

SIDE ELEVATION

First floor plan

IY=nm=—nq1

L

REAR ELEVATION

-

CLIENT

/]

PROJECT

N\
\

SIDE ELEVATION

0 5 10
Meters

DRAWING

HOUSE TYPEA

SCALE

DATE

1:100 @ A3

DEC 2015

DRAWING NUMBER

REVISION




@

Kitchen

=

en suite

Garage

Revision| Description Date

CLIENT

Lounge

PROJECT

Ground floor plan First floor plan Second floor plan

DRAWING

HOUSE TYPE Al
FLOOR PLANS

SCALE DATE

1:100 @ A3 DEC 2015

DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

Green Square Architecture Ltd
"The Tap'

2 Kingsway,

Altrincham,

Cheshire,

WA14 1ET

T:+44 (0) 161941 3080

E: info@greensquarearchitecture.com




FRONT ELEVATION

T9 uarepny

[T

[T

TN

i

REAR ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

=

Descripfion Date

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING

HOUSE TYPE Al
ELEVATIONS

SCALE DATE

1:100 @ A3 DEC 2015

SIDE ELEVATION

DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

Green Square Architecture Ltd
"The Tap'

2 Kingsway,

Altrincham,

Cheshire,

WA14 1ET

T:+44 (0) 161941 3080

E: info@greensquarearchitecture.com




|
[

[T

.

=M=

L

I
n

[T [T

5

M

il

0

RPN
C
(@]
Q
®
-
(@))
N

Garage

Ground floor plan

T ELEVATION

Kitchen

-

Utility

Lounge

SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

N

[T

evision Description Date

CLIENT

First floor plan

=J

PROJECT

en suite

DRAWING

SIDE ELEVATION

HOUSE TYPE B

SCALE DATE
1:100 @ A3 DEC 2015
DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

Green Square Architecture Ltd
"The Tap'

2 Kingsway,

Altrincham,

Cheshire,

WA14 1ET

T:+44 (0) 161941 3080

E: info@greensquarearchitecture.com




€9 usjepnyL

Family

Kitchen

Bed 5/Study

7

(&)

Playroom

en suite

Utility

|
Ea

Garage

Lounge

L
L

Ground floor plan First floor plan

Revision| Description Date

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING

HOUSE TYPE B1
FLOOR PLANS

SCALE DATE
1:100 @ A3 DEC 2015
DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

Green Square Architecture Ltd
"The Tap'

2 Kingsway,

Altrincham,

Cheshire,

WA14 1ET

T:+44 (0) 161941 3080

E: info@greensquarearchitecture.com




¥9 usrep

—l | 0

FRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

—
% ==

H\’\’::‘\‘H
1/

Nl

7
B
—

N

[T

;

i)

REAR ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

Revision| Descripfion

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING

HOUSE TYPE B1
ELEVATIONS

SCALE DATE

1:100 @ A3 DEC 2015

DRAWING NUMBER

REVISION

Green Square Arch
"The Tap'

2 Kingsway,
Altrincham,
Cheshire,

WA14 1ET

T: 444 (0) 161941
a

itecture Ltd

3080
rchitect

E: info@greensquarearchitecture.com




G9 usjepnL

FAMILY/DINING

LOUNGE

KITCHEN

I GARAGE

?

Ground floor plan

BEDROOM 4

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 1

First floor plan

Revision| Descripfion Date
CLEENT
PROJECT
DRAWING
HOUSE TYPE C
FLOOR PLANS
SCALE DATE
1:100 @ A3 DEC 2015
DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

Green Square Architecture Ltd
"The Tap'

2 Kingsway,

Altrincham,

Cheshire,

WA14 1ET

T: 444 (0) 161941 3080

E: info@greensquarearchitecture.com




lepn.i

99 u

il

=
]

=

7\

FRONT ELEVATION

L]

Nl I
nn

SIDE ELEVATION

Revision Description Date

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING

HOUSE TYPE C
ELEVATIONS

SCALE DATE

1:100 @ A3 DEC 2015

REAR ELEVATION

DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

SIDE ELEVATION

Green Square Architecture Ltd
"The Tap'

2 Kingsway,

Altrincham,

Cheshire,

WA14 1ET

T:+44 (0) 161941 3080

E: info@greensquarearchitecture.com




FAMILY/DINING

BEDROOM 2

LOUNGE

BEDROOM 2

TV ROOM

Second floor plan

I GARAGE STpDY Rovision) Description Date

CLIENT

WC
L

? e PROJECT
Ground floor plan First floor plan

DRAWING

HOUSE TYPE C1
FLOOR PLANS
SCALE DATE
1:100 @ A3 DEC 2015
DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

Green Square Architecture Ltd
"The Tap'

2 Kingsway,

Altrincham,

Cheshire,

WA14 1ET




pnL

8o u

FDH

[T 1l

i

N

[T

LI

FRONT ELEVATION

=

— =

L]

=

SIDE ELEVATION

Revision| Descripfion Date

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING

HOUSE TYPE C1
ELEVATIONS

SCALE DATE

REAR ELEVATION

1:100 @ A3 DEC 2015

DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

SIDE ELEVATION

Green Square Architecture Ltd

"The Tap'

2 Kingsway,

Altrincham,

Cheshire,

WA14 1ET

T:+44 (0) 161941 3080
architec

E: info@greensquarearchitecture.com




69 usjfepnL

FAMILY/DINING

A

Ground floor plan

DRAWING TITLE

HOUSE TYPE CA - PLANS

OCT 2018 ‘ Scale : 1:100 @ A3

DRAWING NO REVISION

BEDROOM 4

BEDRQOM 2

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 3

.
First floor plan

I\

wcC




0/ usjfepnlL

]

A

=

=

%ﬂ il
FRONT ELEVATION
|L W‘_EE_DW@’
=Nl $ﬁ
\

REAR ELEVATION

DRAWING TITLE

HOUSE TYPE CA - ELEVATIONS

OCT 2018

‘ Scale : 1:100 @ A3 ‘

DRAWING NO

REVISION

]u

1§

25M

i |

—_— |

=
==

T =

- MmN

un A0

SIDE ELEVATION

2

5[

™

—

§|

[ —

SIDE ELEVATION




FAMILY/DINING

= =

&
1 e

_|
c
& we oom
[0)
S5 7
\l
|_\
I GARAGE
—

Ground floor plan

DRAWING TITLE

HOUSE TYPE C1A - PLANS

oCT 2018 ‘ Scale : 1:100 @ A3 ‘

DRAWING NO REVISION

HALL

BATH

BEDROOM 2
BEDROCM 1
LOUNGE LANDING
1 BEDROOM 2
—]
PLAYROOM | —
@ EN-SUITE
DRESS
BEDROCM 3
TVRoam EN-SUITE
Second floor plan
(] 600mm 25M M
| I
[ ]| Flul_l
2680mm 1M

STUDY

First floor plan




I
T
I

El FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
o
Q_J o 500mm 25M M
Q) i )
> o
Rl) @
=
yom
AN -

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

D:(V;EJGSWELETYPE C1A - ELEVATIONS

oCT 2018 ‘ Scale : 1:100 @ A3 ‘

DRAWING NO REVISION




]D —
H Bathroom T
[
[
TYPE E ({2B4P) - FIRST FLOOR PLAN
(EITHER TERRACE OR SEMI DETACHED)
™A ™ ™A
= — -
= i i T
g Kitchen/Dining Kitchen/Dining Kitchen/Dining
®
>
~l ) we cB cB
w
[ {
[ {
3 i i 3 l U

\
[ L L1 4

TYPE E (2B4P) - GROUND FLOOR PLANi
(EITHER TERRACE OR SEMI DETACHED)

o 600mm 26M &M
01—
 E—
280mm 1M

DRAWING TITLE

HOUSE TYPE E - PLANS

oCT 2018 ‘ Scale : 1:100 @ A3 ‘

DRAWING NO REVISION




S

5
)]

AR

=
1

En Suite En Suite

Bed 3 Bed 3 Bed 3 Bed 3

TYPE F - 3 STOREY, 3 BED - SECOND FLOOR PLAN
(EITHER TERRACE OR SEMI DETACHED)

o

|
|
‘v
Bed 1 Bed1 Bed1 Bed 1 Bed1
T 1 I 1 | | T 1 T 1
| ] ] 1 -

TYPE F - 3 STOREY, 3 BED - FIRST FLOOR PLAN
(EITHER TERRACE OR SEMI DETACHED)
™

V] Id
= —— T —
Lounge Lounge Lounge Lounge Lounge
Diring tﬁ Ej Dining Dining i Diing tﬁ Mj Dining
A A q =
== | ==

<A P.. e <A P..
ur'IE';:W;M_luNI 3 TYPE F - 3 STOREY, 3 BED - GROUND FLOOR PLAN

(EITHER TERRACE OR SEMI DETACHED)

DRAWING TITLE

HOUSE TYPE F - PLANS

‘Sca\e:l:l(}O@AS ‘ TUdalen 74

DRAWING NO

REVISION




SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

STORE/OFFICE SHOP FLOOR > E#ngm’gg
N | () Y R AREA FOR SHOP SIGNAGE
E| 1
S 4
SJ_.) VAR IR
CD ;TAFF 2
> CQ.GL = — | =
~ _lﬂ/r —
(@)]

O] I
DELIVERIES H

250mm 1M

CONVENIENCE STORE PLAN

|

SIDE (DELIVERIES) ELEVATION

DRAWING TITLE

CONVENIENCE STORE

oCT 2018 ‘ Scale : 1:100 @ A3 ‘

DRAWING NO REVISION




Statement from Local Ward Member

Coppy Farm in Gwernaffield has finally come to Planning Committee with the
correct decision, ‘REFUSAL’, what a relief for the residents, many have been
extremely worried about this proposal.

The Planning Committee will be aware of the recent significant background of
planning history at this location.

Gwernaffield is a category C or Tier 4 Small Village Status where a housing
development will only be permitted adjoining settlement boundaries related to
scale, character, rate of the settlement or delivers local need affordable housing.

There is insufficient evidence provided to justify this inappropriate development
in open countryside and does not accord with the UDP also the proposed LDP or
National policy.

Gwernaffield does not have the infrastructure to support the growth in
population, the roads would have to cope with tremendous increase in traffic and
potential of 240 cars and utility vehicles etc. There would be an increase of
traffic pollution and pressures on various amenities. The sewage system is under
capacity and unable to cope with current demand and obviously not able to cope
with 80 new homes, there have been problems over the years with the system,
last year the problem affected Rhual on the edge of Mold with 5 acres of land
being affected by raw sewage.

The applicant seeks to maximise the development on this site with no regard to
the appropriateness or impact on residents, the proposal is contrary to guidence
Sec. 3 Edition 10 PPW, in relation to good design, policy etc.

Form, density and layout of the proposed development is unacceptable and
would be detrimental to Gwernaffield.

There would be loss of AGRICULTURAL LAND Grade 3b and 3a PPW states
Grade 1,2,3a is best land and most versatile and should be conserved as a
resource for the future.

Small farms with Grade 1,2, 3a,3b land should be retained as they are valuable
for various farm usage. Council Holdings have been sold making farms like
Coppy Farm a much needed start in agriculture, these farms maintain
biodiversity and where appropriate enhance the intrinsic traditional rural
character of the area.

There are policies to protect the open countryside, L1, STR1, STR7, GEN1,3,4.
WB2 agricultural which should be protected from development. TWH2, WB1,

AC13 Access and Traffic Impact. HSG3, RE1 Protection of Agricultural Land
and HSG10 affordable housing.

There is No Justification for permission to be given to this proposal and | ask all
members of the Planning Committee to support the
Officers recommendation to REFUSE.

Tudalen 76



Statement from Community Council

Planning Application Reference N0:059396 Proposal: Erection of 80 dwellings, convenience store and
associated development Location: Coppy Farm, Cilcain Road, Gwernaffield, Mold, Flintshire, CH7 5DQ

At a public meeting, the Community Council unanimously objected to this application.

It goes against Flintshire Council’s adopted UDP and proposed LDP and hence was not
accepted as a candidate site. This site does not comply with the Council’s Preferred Strategy
due to its position in the settlement hierarchy. A Ministerial statement dis-applies paragraph
6.2 TAN 1. removing any reference to attaching “considerable” weight to the lack of a 5-year
housing land supply when considering planning applications for housing.

There is an adverse impact on residential amenity in terms of hours of use, loss of privacy,
loss of light, over dominance, noise, traffic on residential amenity. The Community Council
regularly liaise with Streetscene about the poor condition of the roads in Gwernaffield village,
problematic for vehicles pedestrians and cyclists and the proposal would worsen the roads.

Has an adverse Impact on the character and appearance of the area. The Community
Council does not believe the current proposal is an appropriate housing need for a small
village or the surrounding area and will have a negative visual impact on the village in terms
of density, design and scale and public safety with significant increase in traffic.

Adverse impact on community facilities. Gwernaffield does not have sufficient facilities or
services to ensure basic daily needs of its residents can be met. There is presently a small
shop and post office in Pantymwyn, which is primarily used by a small number of residents
and the local primary school is currently stretched.

Yours sincerely

Community Council

Tudalen 77



Statement from Agent

This is an application for housing on a sustainable site partly within the development boundary of
Gwernaffield and within walking distance of local facilities including:

e Local Primary School
e Children’s play area
e Public Houses

e Golf Course

e Employment Area

e Places of Worship

e Community Hall

The site is well served by public transport and would also deliver at the front-end of the
development a local community convenience store. Such a facility will be significant benefit to the
community of Gwernaffield, adding to its sustainability as a community with good social and
commercial infrastructure. The importance of providing this local convenience store as part of the
development has only become more evident during most of 2020 where communities need the
ability to carry out their day-to-day shopping needs within their community. This proposal is firmly
aligned with the Well-being of Future Generations Act.

This proposal was discussed at length with planning officers prior to submission and before formal
submission officers agreed “that the site is a supportable sustainable site” and could be supported
by officers. The response received from a Senior Planning Officer who had clearly weighed all factors
affecting the planning balance of the proposal noted:

“l feel that the meetings throughout this process have been productive and | am looking forward to
seeing the planning submission.

I’d like to thank you for your diligence in obtaining the required reports, which should greatly assist

the LPA in determining the application. it is still my informal opinion that the development is
acceptable in principle”.

Tudalen 78



Statement from Local Residents Group - Objector

Application Reference No: 059396
Address: Coppy Farm, Cilcain Road, Gwernaffield, Mold, CH7 5DQ

Objector to this application, for the following reasons:

- It is not in accordance with the Council’s UDP, Local Development Plan,
Preferred Strategy or Planning Policy Wales and related policies

- if approved it would prejudice the agreed plan-led system and undermine
the LDP process and its submission to WG

- insufficient evidence to support speculative development as the emerging
LDP meets County requirements for housing

- the ‘Candidate Site Assessment’ said the site was ‘not considered to be
suitable to be allocated or included in the settlement boundary.’

- Site IS visible from the highway (despite what the application says)

- it is full of other inaccuracies (regarding Accessibility & Sustainability) and
omissions (e.g. Drainage Systems (SuDs) standards and Ecology Report)

- Gwernaffield is not a Sustainable settlement - it does not have sufficient
facilities or services to meet basic daily needs; is not on the core bus
network; does not have a well serviced infrastructure and there are no
employment opportunities.

« Gwernaffield is not Accessible - it is 2.3 miles from Mold centre with a
steep hill climb, 100 metres high, from Mold which is unlikely to see a shift
towards sustainable modes of travel

- It is not a site allocated for housing. The proposed development is
inappropriate in scale and nature and would result in a 22% increase in
dwellings. The Council’s own assessment of development that could be
sustainably accommodated was less than 10%; the village has already
achieved 4.1% of this.

- The proposed house types are of standard design and no attempt has
been made to create a bespoke ‘village’ design.

Tudalen 79



Statement from Local Resident - Supporter

Hi,

We are looking to buy a first house in mold or Gwernaffield and notice all planning seems to be getting
rejected.

Please accept this as local residents saying yes to new houses as there are not any 2 bed new builds available
for sale at the moment.

Thank You

Tudalen 80



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6.3

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: WEDNESDAY, 2\° DECEMBER 2020

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING, (ENVIRONMENT AND
ECONOMY), CHIEF OFFICER (EDUCATION AND
YOUTH)

SUBJECT: GENERAL MATTERS - PROPOSED AMENDMENT

TO SECTION 106 AGREEMENT - RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPEMENT AT CROES ATTI, FLINT

1.00 APPLICATION NUMBERS

1.01 Planning permission reference 049154 for outline planning
permission for residential and other uses.

2.00 APPLICANT

201 N/A

3.00 SITE

3.01 Land at Croes Atti, Flint shown on the attached plan —
Appendix 1.

4.00 APPLICATION VALID DATE

4.01

5.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

5.01 To seek authority to vary the Section 106 Agreement (pursuant to
Section 106A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990),
associated with the development of the Land as follows:

1. To increase the area of land to be transferred to the Council for
the proposed school site;

2. To extend the time limit to commence development of the school
site; and

3. To remove the requirement for the developers to retain land for
use as a health centre.

The proposed variations are summarised at paragraph 6.08.

6.00 REPORT

Tudalen 81



6.01

The site comprises 27 hectares and was granted outline planning
permission for a mixed use development scheme comprising
residential development, public open space, health centre,
infrastructure works, landscaping, education and community
facilities.

6.02

This site is subject to a Section 106 Agreement which

sets out a number of requirements. These includes the provision of

land for public open space, a health centre, education and

community facilities.

The site has been developed in line with a Development Brief which
sought to create modern residential neighbourhoods

which have a strong local identity and encourage a sense of

community.

6.03

An area of 1.5 hectares of land was specifically set aside for the
provision of a school which constituted the contribution from

the developer for education requirements. This included an
additional 1.0ha of land for a school extension if needed. This
facility met the required policy standards and its delivery is
secured by virtue of the Section 106 Agreement. However,
the S106 agreement also requires that 0.9ha of the area of
the 1.5 ha set out aside for education land was required for
the dual use of a school playing field and a village green.

6.04

The table below sets out the proportion of land allocated for use in the
S106 agreement.

Existing S.106 Land | Area
requirement
Village green* / school playing | 0.9ha
field
School land 0.6ha
School extension land 1.0ha
Sub Total 2.5ha
Shop/Community centre 0.55ha
Health Centre 0.45ha
Total 3.5ha

*The village green element (0.9ha) has already been provided.

6.05

A proposal to replace the existing Ysgol Croes Atti, Flint, with a
new school on this site, is included in the Council's agreed Strategic
Outline Programme for the Welsh Governments 21st Century
Schools’ Investment Programme, Band B.

6.06

The rationale for the amendment to the S106 agreement is on the
basis of the Council’s strategic intent to deliver a new school and

Tudalen 82




that the concept of a dual use open space serving as a school
playing field is unsuitable from a school safeguarding perspective.

6.07

Discussions between officers and the developers have taken

place, during which the Council confirmed that the dual use

arrangement for public open space and school playing field is

unsuitable to meet the necessary required school provision. In
addition, to adequately future-proof the school site 2.5ha of
land would be required.

6.08

The above discussions have been positive, with the developers
content to proceed with a deed of variation to the Section 106
Agreement. The table below sets out the proposed changes :-

S.106 Area Provided | Proposed Amendment
Requirement on site Requirement
Village green /| 0.9ha |0.9ha No change [N/A
school playing (already
field provided)
Shop/community | 0.55ha No Change |N/A
centre
Sub total 1.45ha
Health Centre 0.45ha 0.0ha Removal off
requirement
School land 0.6ha 1.05ha An addition
of 0.45ha of
land (as
above)

School 1.0ha 1.45ha 0.45ha New
extension land Land

Total 3.5ha | 0.9ha 2.5ha

6.09

The additional land (noted in the above table as school extension land
1.45ha) shown in purple on the attached plan, would be required in
order to facilitate appropriate school design and to ensure that the
school site is future proofed.

6.10

Officers have consulted with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board
who have confirmed that they have no interest in use of the land
currently set aside for a Health Centre. Members will already be
aware that The Health Board has strategically invested in new Health
Centre provision within the towns of Flint, Holywell, Buckley, Connah’s
Quay and Mold. There is therefore no likely prospect or need for Betsi
Cadwaladr to utiise the land set aside for a Heath Centre.

6.11

Whilst it is the intention to develop the proposed school project as
soon as practically possible (subject to appropriate approvals) it is

Tudalen 83




requested that the date required to commence development of the
school be extended to allow flexibility if progress is adversely affected
by the global pandemic.

7.00 RECOMMENDATIONS
7.01 That the Section 106 Agreement relating to the Land be varied to
provide:

1. Anincrease in the land constituting the School Site from 0.6ha
to 1.05ha and requiring that land to be transferred to the
Council.

2. Removal of the requirement to retain 0.45 ha of land for use
as a Health Centre

3. An increase in the school extension land from 1.00ha to
1.45ha.

4. To extend the date required for commencement of
development of the school on the school site to 10 years from
the date of varied agreement.

8.00 LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
e Planning Application & Supporting Documents
e Section 106 Agreement dated 31st August 2012
9.00 Contact Officer: Damian Hughes / Mandy Lewis

Telephone: damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk
mandy.lewis@flintshire.qov.uk
Email: 01352 704135/ 01352 703248

Tudalen 84



mailto:damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk
mailto:mandy.lewis@flintshire.gov.uk




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



REPORT TO:

DATE:

REPORT BY:

SUBJECT:

APPLICATION
NUMBER:

APPLICANT:

SITE:

APPLICATION
VALID DATE:

LOCAL MEMBERS:

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6.4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

2"d DECEMBER 2020

CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT
AND ECONOMY)

061720 — FULL APPLICATION - SUN ROOM &
GARAGE EXTENSION WITH BEDROOM
EXTENSION ABOVE.

061720

MR M PEERS

7 PINEWOOD ROAD, DRURY, BUCKLEY,
CH73JZ

31 SEPTEMBER 2020

COUNCILLOR D.HUTCHINSON AND

TOWN/COMMUNITY
COUNCIL.:

REASON FOR
COMMITTEE:

SITE VISIT:

1.00 SUMMARY

COUNCILLOR M.J.PEERS

BUCKLEY TOWN COUNCIL

APPLICANT IS COUNTY COUNCILLOR AND
MEMBER OF PLANNING COMMITTEE

NO

1.01 In accordance with the Council’'s Planning Code of Practice,
applications for planning permission by County Councillors should be
determined by the Planning Committee (the Committee).

However, on the 19" of October 2020 planning permission was
granted pursuant to this application under the delegated decision
process, without the application having first been considered by the

Committee.

Tudalen 87



2.00

2.01

The planning permission that has been issued is for the erection of a
sun room & garage extension with bedroom extension above at 7
Pinewood Road, Drury, Buckley. The main issues considered, that
gave rise to the grant of planning permission, were the character and
appearance of the proposal and any impact on existing or proposed
living conditions. These matters are more fully set out in sections 6 to
7 of this report.

Given that the application should have been determined by the
Committee there are two options open to the Committee at this stage,
as follows:

1. Firstly, if the Committee are certain that (had the application
been considered by them prior to the grant of planning
permission) they would have resolved to grant planning
permission then the Committee can formally ratify the grant of
the planning permission that was issued on the 19 October
2020, and the applicant can then implement the permission
that has already been issued on that date. The Committee may
reach this view if they consider that the development is in
accordance with the development plan and planning policy,
and that no other material considerations would have led to a
refusal of permission by the Committee. If this is the case then
the Committee can resolve to approve the recommendation at
paragraph 2.01 of this report; or

2. If the Committee consider that (had the application been
considered by them prior to the grant of planning permission)
they may have refused planning permission, and that it is
expedient to do so, then the permission can be revoked under
Section 97 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (the
Act). In deciding whether to revoke a planning permission the
Committee shall have regard to the development plan and to
any other material considerations. A revocation under Section
97 of the Act gives rise to a statutory right to compensation
under Section 107 of the Act in respect of expenditure
rendered abortive by the revocation order, and for any other
loss or damage directly attributable to the revocation order. If
the Committee considers that planning permission should be
revoked then the Committee can resolve to approve the
recommendation at paragraph 2.02 of this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The planning permission is in compliance with the development plan
and no other material considerations would have led to planning
permission being refused by the Committee, and the planning
permission should not therefore be revoked; or

Tudalen 88



2.02

3.00

3.01

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

That the planning permission granted on the 20 October 2020 shall
be revoked.

CONSULTATIONS

Local Member Councillor D Hutchinson
No comment at the time of writing.

Buckley Town Council
No objection.

Highways Development Control
No objection.

Community and Business Protection
No objection.

Tree Preservation Officer
No comment at time of writing.

Natural Resources Wales
No objection

Ecology
The location is within a large area of housing and not immediately

adjacent to good foraging habitat so the risk of bats being present is
likely to be low but advise a Note to applicant:

All bats and their roosts are protected under the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, and the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 as amended. You are advised that should a bat
be found then work must cease and Natural Resources Wales or the
County Ecologist contacted for advice on any special precautions
before continuing.

PUBLICITY
No letters of objection received.

SITE HISTORY

056669 - Erection of sunroom and garage extension with bedroom
extension above. - Approved 20/04/2017

PLANNING POLICIES

Flintshire Unitary Development Plan
e HSG12 House extensions and alterations
e GEN1 General requirements for development

Tudalen 89



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

e GEN2 Development inside settlement boundaries
e D1 Design quality, location and layout
e D2 design

Supplementary Planning Guidance
e SPGN1 Extensions and Alterations to Dwellings
e SPGN2 Space around dwellings

National Planning Policies:
e Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 10

PLANNING APPRAISAL

Introduction

This full planning application proposes the erection of a sun room &
garage extension with bedroom extension above at 7 Pinewood
Road, Drury, Buckley.

The application site is a two storey detached dwelling finished in brick
with attached single garage. The surrounding area is predominantly
residential with the majority being two storey detached homes
situated on moderate size plots with a good size front and rear
gardens.

Proposed Development

The proposed development is sought for the erection of a single
storey rear extension to replace the existing conservatory. The
proposal will be of similar dimensions, extending approximately 3.5m
from the rear of the property. The proposal will include a pitched roof
containing three roof lights. There is one large window and three high
sills levels facing the neighbouring property at number 5. Additionally,
there is one French door located on side elevation which would open
out onto the rear garden and two windows proposed on the rear
elevation.

The proposal also includes the extension of the existing garage,
approximately 1.8m wider to allow for an enlarged garage and foyer
area that would include a utility room and downstairs W.C.

In addition to this the proposal includes a first floor extension above
the garage to allow for two additional bedrooms. The proposal will
extend approximately 4.6m wide and approximately 7m in length.
The proposal will include a pitched roof designed with a gable end
situated with a lower ridge height than the existing dwelling. There is
one proposed window on the first floor front elevation and two
windows in the first floor rear elevation.

Tudalen 90



7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

Principle of Development:

The proposed development is located within the settlement boundary
of Drury a small village situated on the outskirts of Buckley. GEN2
states that development will normally be permitted within settlement
boundaries.

HSG12 states extensions or alterations to existing dwellings will be
permitted provided that the proposal:

- is subsidiary in scale and form to the existing dwelling, and
does not represent an overdevelopment of the site;

- respects the design and setting of the existing dwelling and
surrounding area; and

- will not have an unacceptable impact on people living nearby.

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 1 paragraph 2.2 and the
justification and explanation to Policy HSG12, state that as a general
guide, house extensions should not be more than 50% of the original
floor space and extensions that are out of scale and character will not
be permitted.

GEN1 and D1 states that development should harmonise with the site
and surroundings in terms of the siting, scale, design, layout, use of
space, materials, external appearance and landscaping.

PPW10 introduces the concept of placemaking whose positive
implementation through good design is to ensure peoples and
community well-being. PPW states that good design is fundamental
to achieving sustainable places and is not simply about the
architecture of a building or development but the relationship between
all elements of the natural and built environment and between people
and places.

Scale of Development

In terms of scale as the dwelling is located on a sizeable plot the
proposal will retain adequate amenity area once built. It is considered
that the proposed extensions are subordinate in scale and as they
form less than 50% of the original floor space the proposal will not
create overdevelopment of the site.

The acceptability of this proposed scale of development however,
needs to be considered in conjunction with its proposed design and
impact on the living conditions of occupiers of adjacent properties,
which are referenced in detail below.

Character and Appearance

The proposal would utilise materials which will match the existing
pallet seen within the existing dwelling. Numerous properties within
the area have similarly designed extensions therefore, it is considered
that the proposal will be reflective of the existing dwelling and

Tudalen 91



7.14

7.15

8.00

8.01

8.02

8.03

character of the surrounding area. It is considered that the proposal
is designed to complement the character of the existing dwelling.

Neighbouring Living Conditions

The proposed extensions are located off the common boundaries of
the neighbouring dwelling. The boundary line consists of mature
dense hedges. It is considered that the proposed extensions will not
overlook or cause a loss of privacy to the surrounding neighbours.
The proposed extensions are considered to be well designed and not
deemed as intrusive to cause a negative impact on the neighbouring
properties. Overall, it is considered that the proposal will not have a
detrimental impact on the neighbouring adjacent living conditions.

The relationship of the existing neighbouring property and this
proposed single storey rear extension which does not protrude a
significant amount passed the neighbouring property means that the
proposal is compliant with the 45 degree guidance as set out in
SPG1. Furthermore, the existing plans illustrate that there is a fully
glazed conservatory situated within the position of the proposed
extension. The proposal is mainly brick therefore, the proposal is a
betterment in terms of any potential overlooking.

CONCLUSION

The proposed extensions and alteration of the property is considered
to be of appropriate form and scale relative to the existing dwelling
and existing development and surrounding area. It is considered that
there is no detrimental impact on the living conditions of neighbouring
occupiers and it is in accordance with policies GEN1, HSG12 and D2
of the Flintshire Unitary Development Plan, and Supplementary
Planning Guidance Notes 1 and 2.

In the circumstances it is recommended that members resolve to
approve the recommendation at paragraph 2.01 of this report to ratify
the previous grant of planning permission.

Other Considerations

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 17 of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and considered that there would be no
significant or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a result
of the recommended decision.

The Council has acted in accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998
including Article 8 of the Convention and in a manner which is
necessary in a democratic society in furtherance of the legitimate
aims of the Act and the Convention.

The Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty
under the Equality Act 2010.

Tudalen 92



8.04

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 3 of the
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and considered
that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the
achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the recommended
decision.

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy

Responses to Consultation

Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Charlotte Lloyd-Randall

Telephone: 01352 703280
Email: charlotte.lloyd-randali@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 93



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Primary
School

i

Applicati

on Site

B Lo el )
Location Plan Scale 1:
i s G 5 LI

Al

[~
\

CYNGOR

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Planning, Environment & Economy,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow

Legend

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan | 0S Map ref SJ 2964 |

d%ﬁ@ﬁeg\qoundary

Planning Application Site

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Licence number: 100023386.

Flintshire County Council, 2020.

| Map Scale 1:1250 |

|PIanningAppIication 61720 |




= _=
[y =
o
P
\\\\ - }U/“E/S“

Vaverley

County Primary
School

conservatory

SITE LOCATION PLAN - Scale 1:2500

96 us|epnL

BLOCK PLAN - Scale 1:500

drawing to ke read in conjunction with specification and any structural engineers details.

rwpy

.

garage

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR

kitchen

lounge

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR

JlG Architects

RIBA Chartered Practice

Studio 16, Mold Business Park, Wrexham Rd, Mold. CH7 LXP

Pt OUN TOOM, bedrooms and garage

extensions.

7 Pinewood Road, Drury.

T 01352 744889 I F 01352 700769 I E: adnin@ jigarchitects.con

The Contractor is responsible for checking all
dimensions, tolerances and references. Any discrepancy is
to be notifled to Jig before proceeding with the work.
Where an item is covered by drawings to different
scales, the larger scale drawing is to take precedence.
Do not scole drawings, figured dimensions are to ke
worked to in oll cases

This drawing Is copyright © jig architects

wawig tite LOCation plan and existing plans

Olient Mr & Mrs M Peers.

s 100K P 01398 /16 |
Drawn idi -

T B-AO4




[
==

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION

drawing to ke read in conjunction with specification and any structural engineers details.

L L L L e L L L L TN
I T et e
e e e enmsenmeesamnsa
e e e e e e e e e e e e e \“““ “““““L““““ “ ‘g H“““““““““ “‘ < “‘““““‘“““““““““““\
EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION
—
c
Q. O o o o o o o T o T T D D D D D T o
D T Z=aE
9 C L DL L O D T L O D T T DT s
3 \‘\:\:\:\:\:\:\:\:\:\:\:\:\: \:\:\:\:\:\:\:\:\:\: H"““‘“““‘“‘““““‘“‘“‘“‘“““““““““““““H
(o} : S
\l

E

XISTING SIDE ELEVATION

J|G Architects

RIBA Chartered Practice

Studio 16, Mold Business Park, Wrexham Rd, Mold. CH7 LXP

woeet SUN room, bedrooms and garage
extensions.

7 Pinewood Road, Drury.

T 01352 744889 I F 01352 700769 I E: adnin@ jigarchitects.con

The Contractor is responsible for checking all

to be notified to jig before proceeding with the wark.
Where an item is covered by orawings to different

Do not scole drawings, figured dimensions are to ke
worked to in oll cases
This drawing Is copyright © jig architects

wawig tite EXisting Elevations

dimensions, tolerances and references. Any discrepancy is

Olient Mr & Mrs M Peers.

scales, the larger scale drawing is to take precedence.

s 11000 BI™™ ji01398/16 [

Drawn idi o

bete  Oct '18 B—A05




Revision

JIG1398/16

, bedrooms and garage
"™ B-A03 sk3

ions.
7 Pinewood Road, Drury.

Mr & Mrs M Peers.

100 @ A3 [0 N

jdi

Oct 18

Sun room
extens

1

Project
Scale

Date

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

| F 01352 700769 | £ adnine jigarchitects.con | rawing title Proposed Elevations

RIBA Chartered Practice
The Contractor is responsible for checking all

in all cases

JlG Architects

dimensions, tolerances and references. Any discrepancy is | gient

Studio 16, Mold Business Park, Wrexham Rd, Mold. CH7 LXP
to be notifled to Jig before proceeding with the work.
Where an item is covered by drawings to different

T 01352 744889

scales, the larger scale drowing is to take precedence.
Do not scale drawings, figured dimensions are to ke

worked to
This drawing is copyright © jig architects

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

e

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

HHHH ERFEAAEAAE HHH L e FHHHEREH

Tudalen 98

drawing to be read in conjunction with specification and any structural engineers details.



drawi

890

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR

)"WDD

225

kitchen

hall

[« :1 }7 ‘
A 1230 172
fomily room
Ip/
[qV/
)|
™)
—
L
—
—
H /
i1 _ — |
by ] Bhdl00 Untels !
= 1810 —
. o
3 Y
= foyer
SVp $ZZ - U ll‘ty
—I |
; W |
S | KOO 3%
Q i o ©) {
6 X
3 X
O 3
© 3
7 j
: garoge
: u beams
: o
X ™)
% ™
63 |

g to be read in conjunction with specification and any structural engineers details.

rwp

lounge

—@u rwp

\NCSAPChWectS

RIBA Chartered Practice
Studio 16, Mold Business Park, Wrexham Rd, Mold. CH7 LXP

woeet SUN room, bedrooms and garage
extensions.

7 Pinewood Road, Drury.

T 01352 744889 I F 01352 700769 I E: adnin@ jigarchitects.con

The Contractor is responsible for checking all
dimensions, tolerances and references. Any discrepancy is
to be notifled to Jig before proceeding with the work.
Where an item is covered by drawings to different
scales, the larger scale drawing is to take precedence.
Do not scale drawings, figured dimensions are to ke
worked to in all cases

This drawing is copyright © jig architects

wraning e Proposed Ground floor

Oient Mr & Mrs M Peers.

e ROBIT i61398/16 |
idi

e oaw| . B-AO1




)
o
<]
—_
<]
o
2 :
© W/ = ©|
- o 3 ‘I
o 58 g2
1S c |8 Q1
o L al R m
<] Bl [z ™
2 gl —
3 & gl
o =| Sig
.. Olo B g
£9 8|9 |sfz
c Olw |Z[s
86 =|o —
C'm 2| 5 2|8|l»
c =2 .
el a|a m 3
X%
No ~| 2 e
>
b m % M o
£ 5 2
§|
g & ;
18] %y v
Ny z| 8l 5.5
= + 3
T | I 1)
lTvu M HY gecal
e
C =] 3527 ¢d,
Ua Dl @] 83ss ¢
-l £ QYHd@n "
o .man +
W X< _038n U
T oglaEagros ¢
Ty = £
+ o gl=]gisylw £
TR} Yue 2 € U
— Clalisisel §
- >| 2lelos oo
S Jdsltosse o
c ¥l 8fy+adEs S
<l N Yo R
US §| ulz2e38t
Sl gl%s5.353 ©
PA |l 8l15§ceT & »
nl 3| 8sgoe+ %
Mm o w253 no
— < ™ oW E[SE‘
<% Gl=—] L2022 005%
us8edn
&l Je5,95358
-  SPuse_U
S| & 95oe5°%
=)l ot Bev~wc
— G| I8 EE0ST 2
Ll NlSsiBcSsUos
—IU 580 P RRT
& R
E B B TR A
T (] CosLUcy
S =2 ] ] 0
2l ®|leEoscTobs
) HlFTP3Iua e

T

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR

[
landing
-
-
-
-
-

R
WT
I
[
I
[
[

1

4657

bedroom 4

veee | T HIMLLTLT LT

qvpP o
rwp

9/8¢€

Tudalen 100

drawing to be read in conjunction with specification and any structural engineers details.



TOT uarepny

FROFOSED FRONT ELEWVATION

PROPOSED SIDE

PROPOSED REAR ELEWATION

drawrg to e rewd v oconjunction sith specification oral ary structueal engiceers detolis.

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

ELEVATION

Architects

RIBA Chartered Proctice

Studic 18, Mold Business Park, Wrewham Rd, Mold CHT DXP

moet SUN ro0M, bedrooms and garage

extensions,
7 Pinewood Road, Drury.

FaLrs2 Y26 | [ caninl)

ey 90 Proposed Elevations

Gl Wr & Wz M Peers.

Dreser:

s " JIG1398/16

- | B-AO3 skd




¢0T usjepnL

drawi

rwpﬂ;'

JF PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR
T
i
o
/
i -
o -
Ty .~
) ;
,lT o 5VP rwp,
= f ! j L
I"WDB bhd]i] lintels L
o || kitchen
e
foyer :
lounge
garage
hall ; ,
u_beams | |
T rwp
JlGAY‘Chi‘tE’C‘tS repa UM 10OM, bedrooms and garoge
o RIBA Chartered Practice extensions.
o 225 Studky 18, Mold Business Park, Wrevhom Ru, Mold. CH? LGP 7 Pinewood Road, Drury.
=T T mIse  Tesss9 |r m3%e TNTES I:-mmm e e Proposed Ground floor
The Cemiroctor s respersible Por checkdng all
= it Mivergel D8 rereiainn oy e [ s U P
E65 rwp Whare an [ien i3 Covered by druengs 1o diffeeent o e a[Em .
: g.{ r:mﬁ%rm 'W‘:‘M:P'l :-v"t.: hm- o ;“(;1393}”5 | | | |
hg to be rend In conjunction sith specification and ony Structural snginesrs detsls. This ;-1-:-;; compright © Ji architects el ot "1 B-401 [ T11




SLBL

= _HH
g o] o
» 28 |¢|lS
HLEE
3 2|E (53,
S U
AR ™~ 2 8 2
T alalils
sl gl 3,5
ug |3 b
D Mt
ew . MWMWW .m
e af ¥ iz
=f m 5|5t %h i
L5 Wtrﬂ..w.m_ e
U Bl liteail
= I S|
Iz “lErailak
AR
Qs O 1 T
| —ftll | n-m«w.mww
3 HRE R
Lo
T
vy
('
Le
P
Lol
)
[
= o
0 £
- 2
S
HHHHH HH 5 B
HHHHHHHKEHNETETE 5 50 uf I
............... ays 4o jesuun :
||||||| &
...... i u]
||||||||||||| - £ :
FEgcpHptpen g e W
|||||||||| H o | © w
|||||| m % D m\J “vl_ w “ “ Elale m
~ =1 ] 1 ,.I ullm 2
el HH HHH W
B = H = H
B 262 W AHAHR 3
. , WT HHH] m
ik B HTHHH 4
HHHHT : e — ]
_ ~ [ M
a =
> e
£
]
z
i
£
§l
i

Tudalen 103




stepped EE'-lltxI
tray orad Flashing

eearer bolted 1o
[] Il ot Crs

¥OT usfepnl
L

2175

as existing

gorage

droasing 45 ke resd v Son unetion eith specifisation and ery structural enginesrs detels.

SECTION

firelne plaster
board

-“Cgﬁrchﬁects

RIBA Chartered Proctlce
Thudla 16, Meld Busknrid Pork, Wreshas Rd, Mald CHT (9P

Pupt OUM roam, bedraoms and garage

axtension,
7 Finewood Rood, Drury.

T WIIE  TadaH3 FDLIEE TGS | B asinll

by e Proposed Sections

B bir & W W Pesra.

= ey " IG1398,/16

- wm] B-ADE sk3




	Rhaglen
	4 Cofnodion
	6.1 061572 - C - Cais llawn - Datblygu 56 annedd gan gynnwys ffordd newydd, mannau parcio, tirlunio a chysylltiadau draenio gan gynnwys ffurfio pant yn y tir yng nghefn 66A Ffordd Yr Wyddgrug, Mynydd Isa
	Enc. 1 for 061572 - Full application - Development of 56 dwellings including new roadway, parking areas, landscaping and drainage connections including formation of swale at land to the rear of 66a Mold Road, Mynydd Isa
	061572 Collated OS Plan & Site Plan - A4
	061572 Collated Plans - A4
	061572 Collated Statements


	6.2 059396 - G - Cais llawn - Adeiladu 80 annnedd, siop gyfleus a datblygiad cysylltiol yn Coppy Farm, Ffordd Cilcain, Gwernaffield
	Enc. 1 for 059396 - Full Application - Erection of 80 Dwellings, Convenience Store and Associated Development at Coppy Farm, Cilcain Road, Gwernaffield.

	6.3 Materion Cyffredinol - Cytundeb amrywiad A106
	Enc. 1 for General Matters - Variation of S106 agreement at Croes Atti, Flint

	6.4 061720 - Materion Cuffredinol  - Cais llawn am estyniad Ystafell Haul a Garej gydag Estyniad Ystafell Wely uwchlaw yn 7 Ffordd Pinewood, Drury
	Enc. 1 for 061720 - Full application - Sun Room & garage extension with bedroom extension above at 7 Pinewood Road, Drury


